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米国証券取引委員会への Form 10-Kならびに Form 8-K提出のお知らせ 

2005年 3月 22日 米国 サンディエゴ発 - メディシノバ・インク（米国カリフォルニア州 サ

ンディエゴ、プレジデント・CEO: 清泉貴志）は 2004年度 Form 10-Kならびに本日配信いたしま

した平成 16年度 12月期決算短信の英語版に相当する Form8-Kを米国証券取引委員会へ提出いたし

ました。 

 

以上 

 

メディシノバ・インクは様々な疾患領域の新規医薬品の導入・開発・販売に特化する製薬企業です。

弊社詳細につきましては http://www.medicinova.com.をご覧下さい。メディシノバ・インクの所在

地はアメリカ合州国カリフォルニア州サンディエゴ市ラ・ホイヤ・ヴィレッジ・ドライブ 4350、ス

イート 950 (電話 1-858-373-1500)です。 
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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

SPECIAL FINANCIAL REPORT PURSUANT TO RULE 15d-2 OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED

Contains only financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004

Commission File Number: 000-51133

MEDICINOVA, INC.
(Exact name of Registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 33-0927979
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation

or organization)
(IRS Employer Identification No.)

4350 La Jolla Village Drive, Suite 950, San Diego, CA 92122 (858) 373-1500
(Address of principal executive offices) (Registrant’s telephone number, including

area code)

Securities registered to Section 12(b) of the Act: None

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:
Common Stock, par value $0.001 per share

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant (1) has filed all reports required by Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the Registrant
was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past
90 days. Yes [ ] No [X]

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K (Section
229.405 of this chapter) is not contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of Registrant’s knowledge,
in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any
amendment to this Form 10-K. [X]

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant is an accelerated filer (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act).
Yes [ ] No [X]

As of March 17, 2005, the aggregate market value of the registrant’s common stock held by non-affiliates of
the registrant was approximately $245 million, based on the closing price of the registrant’s common stock on the
Hercules market of the Osaka Securities Exchange on March 17, 2005 of $3.20 per share. The registrant’s
common stock was not publicly traded as of the last business day of its most recently completed second fiscal
quarter. Shares of common stock held by each executive officer and director and each person who beneficially
owns 10% or more of the outstanding common stock have been excluded from this calculation. This
determination of affiliated status may not be conclusive for other purposes.

As of March 17, 2005, there were 98,855,856 shares of the Registrant’s Common Stock, par value $0.001
per share, issued and outstanding.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

None.
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EXPLANATORY PAGE

On February 4, 2005, we completed our initial public offering of 30,000,000 shares of common stock, par value
$0.001 per share, at a price of ¥400, or approximately $3.88, per share. The offering was conducted in Japan and
the shares are listed on the Hercules market of the Osaka Securities Exchange.

A detailed description of the offering is included in the registration statement on Form S-1 (SEC No. 333-
119433) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 30, 2004, as amended.

Rule 15d-2 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, provides generally that if a company files a
registration statement under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, which does not contain certified financial
statements for the company’s last full fiscal year (or for the life of the company if less than a full fiscal year),
then the company must, within 90 days after the effective date of the registration statement, file a special report
furnishing certified financial statements for the last full fiscal year or other period as the case may be. Rule 15d-2
further provides that the special financial report is to be filed under cover of the facing sheet of the form
appropriate for annual reports of the company.

Our Form S-1 registration statement did not contain the certified financial statements contemplated by Rule
15d-2; therefore, as required by Rule 15d-2, we are hereby filing such certified financial statements with the SEC
under cover of the facing page of an annual report on Form 10-K.

1



 ˆ1VYPH=1GNN12LHHpŠ
1VYPH=1GNN12LHH

99344 TX 2MEDICINOVA, INC.
FORM 10-K

21-Mar-2005 12:40 EST
CLN PSSDI

RR Donnelley ProFile TOR ariam0nb 9*
PMT 1C

NPBFBU-2K-PF004
8.8.12

Selected Financial Data

The selected financial data set forth below is derived from our audited financial statements and may not be indicative of
future operating results. The following selected financial data should be read in conjunction with the Financial Statements for
MediciNova, Inc. and notes thereto and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” included elsewhere herein. The selected quarterly financial data presented below has been derived from our
unaudited interim financial statements which, in our opinion, have been prepared on substantially the same basis as the
audited financial statements contained herein and include all normal recurring adjustments necessary for a fair presentation
of the financial information for the periods presented. The operating results in any quarter are not necessarily indicative of
the results that may be expected for any future period. Amounts are in thousands, except share and per share amounts.

Years ended December 31,

Period from
September 26,

2000 (inception)
to December 31,

2000

Period from
September 26,

2000 (inception)
to December 31,

20042004 2003 2002 2001

Statements of Operations Data:
Revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 490 $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 490
Operating expenses:

Cost of revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 438 — — — — 438
Research and development . . . . . . . . 11,210 4,723 5,551 952 272 22,707
General and administrative . . . . . . . . 3,160 1,538 1,462 1,063 — 7,223
Amortization of employee stock-

based compensation and founders’
warrants:

Research and development . . . . 107 — — — — 107
General and administrative . . . . 34,188 — — — — 34,188

Total operating expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 49,103 6,261 7,013 2,015 272 64,663

Operating loss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (48,613) (6,261) (7,013) (2,015) (272) (64,173)
Other income, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 340 52 82 220 71 764

Net loss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (48,273) (6,209) (6,931) (1,795) (201) (63,409)
Accretion to redemption value of

redeemable convertible preferred
stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (79) — — — — (79)

Deemed dividend resulting from
beneficial conversion feature on
Series C redeemable convertible
preferred stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (31,264) — — — — (31,264)

Net loss applicable to common
stockholders . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ (79,616) $ (6,209) $ (6,931) $ (1,795) $ (201) $(94,752)

Basic and diluted net loss per share(1) . . . $ (159.23) $ (12.42) $ (13.86) $ (3.59) $ (0.40)

Shares used to compute basic and diluted
net loss per share(1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 500,000 500,000 500,000 500,000 500,000

Pro forma net loss per common share
assuming conversion of preferred stock,
basic and diluted(1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ (1.85)

Shares used in computing pro forma net
loss per common share assuming
conversion of preferred stock, basic and
diluted(1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 42,943,281

(1) See Note 1 to our financial statements for an explanation of the method used to calculate the historical and pro forma net
loss per share and the number of shares used in the computation of the per share amounts.

2
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As of December 31,

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

Balance Sheet Data:
Cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities available-

for-sale . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 50,801 $ 5,491 $ 1,281 $ 8,054 $5,074
Working capital . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 48,704 4,838 876 7,756 4,847
Total assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 53,769 5,631 1,586 8,379 5,121
Redeemable convertible preferred stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 43,483 — — — —
Deficit accumulated during the development stage . . . . . . . . (94,753) (15,137) (8,928) (1,996) (201)
Total stockholders’ equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7,669 4,570 1,122 8,054 4,849

Year Ended December 31, 2004

First
Quarter

Second
Quarter

Third
Quarter

Fourth
Quarter

Selected Quarterly Financial Data:
Revenue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 129 $ 58 $ 167 $ 136
Total operating expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6,817 20,110 17,897 4,279
Net loss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (6,678) (20,019) (17,640) (3,936)
Net loss attributable to common stockholders . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (6,678) (20,019) (48,924) (3,995)
Basic and diluted net loss per common share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (13.36) (40.03) (97.85) (7.99)

Year Ended December 31, 2003

First
Quarter

Second
Quarter

Third
Quarter

Fourth
Quarter

Selected Quarterly Financial Data:
Total operating expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 1,312 $ 1,624 $ 1,477 $ 1,848
Net loss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1,309) (1,603) (1,462) (1,835)
Net loss applicable to common stockholders . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1,309) (1,603) (1,462) (1,835)
Basic and diluted net loss per common share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (2.62) (3.20) (2.93) (3.67)

3
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion contains predictions, estimates and other forward-looking statements that involve
a number of risks and uncertainties, including those discussed under “Risk Factors.” These risks could cause our
actual results to differ materially from any future performance suggested below. We undertake no obligation to
update these forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances arising after the date of this report.
You should read this discussion together with the financial statements, related notes and other financial
information included elsewhere in this report.

Overview

We are a specialty pharmaceutical company focused on acquiring, developing and commercializing
innovative pharmaceutical products for a variety of diseases and conditions. We actively seek to identify and
acquire license rights to product candidates with extensive safety and efficacy data that are in late pre-clinical or
early clinical development and that address large markets with significant opportunities for improved therapies.

Our development programs follow a dual pathway:

• strategic core programs; and
• partnering programs.

Our strategic core programs consist of product candidates we intend to retain the rights to through final
regulatory approval in the United States and commercialize directly. Our partnering programs consist of product
candidates we intend to license to larger pharmaceutical companies and with respect to which we intend to retain
co-promotion rights. To date, we have acquired license rights to six compounds. We currently have two Phase I
clinical trials ongoing for product candidates in our strategic core program and intend to enter into a Phase I
clinical trial with one other product candidate in our strategic core program during the second half of 2005. We
currently have Phase II clinical trials ongoing for two of our product candidates in our partnering program and
anticipate entering into Phase II clinical trials with one product candidate in our strategic core program by the
end of the second quarter of 2005 and one product candidate in our partnering program by the end of the second
half of 2005.

We are a development stage company. We have incurred significant net losses since our inception. As of
December 31, 2004, our accumulated deficit was approximately $94.8 million, including $34.3 million of non-
cash stock-based compensation charges related to employee stock-based compensation and founders’ warrants.
We expect to incur substantial net losses for the next several years as we continue to develop our existing
programs, expand our research and development programs and acquire or in-license products, technologies or
businesses that are complementary to our own.

Revenues and Cost of Revenues

We have not generated any revenues from licensing, milestones or product sales to date, and we do not
expect to generate these revenues within the next 12 to 18 months. Our revenues to date have been generated
from development management contracts with Asahi Kasei Pharma Corporation and Argenes Inc. under which
we bill consulting fees and our pass-through clinical contract costs. The primary cost associated with our revenue
is the clinical contract costs we incur and pass-through to our customer. We expect to generate revenue from
these development management contracts for a least the next 12 to 18 months based on currently scheduled
clinical trials.

4
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Research and Development

Our research and development expenses primarily consist of costs associated with the feasibility, licensing
and pre-clinical and clinical development of our six licensed compounds, one of which we are developing for the
treatment of two separate indications. These research and development expenses include external costs, such as
fees paid to consultants and related contract research, and internal costs of compensation and other expenses for
research and development personnel, supplies, materials, facility costs and depreciation.

To the extent that costs, including personnel costs, are not tracked to a specific product development
program, they are included in the “Unallocated” category in the table below. We charge all research and
development expenses to operations as incurred.

The following summarizes our research and development expenses for the periods indicated:

Years ended December 31,

Period from
September 26,

2000 (inception)
to December 31,

2004
Product

Candidate Disease/Indication 2004 2003 2002

Strategic Core Programs

MN-221 Premature labor . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 1,863 $ — $ — $ 1,863
MN-029 Solid tumor . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,393 1,336 547 4,276
MN-001 Interstitial cystitis . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 228 128 — 356
MN-246 Urinary incontinence; Pollakisuria . . . . . . . . . . . . 527 — — 527

5,011 1,464 547 7,022

Partnering Programs
MN-001 Bronchial asthma . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,570 1,428 1,927 4,925
MN-305 Generalized anxiety disorder . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,939 — — 1,939
MN-166 Multiple sclerosis . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 634 9 — 643

4,143 1,437 1,927 7,507
SOCC Cancer; Inflammatory diseases . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 167 1,093 2,515 4,403
Unallocated . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,996 729 562 3,883

Total research and development . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 11,317 $ 4,723 $ 5,551 $ 22,815

At this time, due to the risks inherent in the clinical trial process and given the early stage of development of
our product development programs, we are unable to estimate with any certainty the costs we will incur in the
continued development of our product candidates for potential commercialization. Due to these same factors, we
are unable to determine the anticipated completion dates for our current product development programs. Clinical
development timelines, probability of success and development costs vary widely. While currently we are
focused on advancing each of our product development programs, we anticipate that we will make
determinations as to which programs to pursue and how much funding to direct to each program on an ongoing
basis in response to the scientific and clinical success of each product candidate, as well as an ongoing
assessment as to the product candidate’s commercial potential. In addition, we cannot forecast with any degree of
certainty which product candidates will be subject to future partnering, when such arrangements will be secured,
if at all, and to what degree such arrangements would affect our development plans and capital requirements. As
a result, we cannot be certain when and to what extent we will receive cash inflows from the commercialization
of our drug candidates.

We expect our development expenses to be substantial and to increase as we continue the advancement of
our product development programs. The lengthy process of completing clinical trials and seeking regulatory
approval for our product candidates requires the expenditure of substantial resources. Any failure by us or delay
in completing clinical trials, or in obtaining regulatory approvals, could cause our research and development
expenses to increase and, in turn, have a material adverse effect on our results of operations.

5
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General and Administrative

Our general and administrative expenses primarily consist of salaries and benefits and consulting and
professional fees related to our administrative, finance, human resources, legal and internal systems support
functions. In addition, general and administrative expenses include insurance and facilities costs.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our management’s discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations is based on
our financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements as well as the revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. We evaluate
our estimates and judgments on an ongoing basis. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various
other factors that we believe are reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for
making judgments about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

Our significant accounting policies are more fully described in Note 1 to our financial statements appearing
at the end of this report. The following accounting policies are important in fully understanding and evaluating
our reported financial results.

Research and Development

Research and development expenses consist of costs incurred to further our research and development
activities and include salaries and related employee benefits, costs associated with clinical trials, non-clinical
activities such as toxicology testing, regulatory activities and research-related overhead expenses. Research and
development costs are expensed as incurred. Research and development expenses also include fees for licensed
technology for which technological feasibility has not been established and there are no alternative uses. We also
enter into agreements with external service providers and contract research organizations to conduct many of our
research and development activities and accrue for costs incurred under these contracts based on factors such as
estimates of work performed, milestones achieved, patient enrollment and experience with similar contracts. As
actual costs become known, we adjust our accruals. To date, our accruals have been within management’s
estimates. We expect to expand the level of research and development activity performed by external service
providers in the future. As a result, we anticipate that our estimated accruals will be more material to our
operations in future periods. Subsequent changes in estimates may result in a material change in our accrual,
which could also materially affect our results of operations.

Stock-Based Compensation

We account for employee stock options and warrants using the intrinsic-value method in accordance with
Accounting Principles Board, or APB, Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and related
interpretations and have adopted the disclosure-only provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards,
or SFAS, No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.

Stock-based compensation expense, which is a non-cash charge, results from stock option and warrant
issuances at exercise prices below the deemed fair value of the underlying common stock. We recognize this
compensation expense on a straight-line basis over the vesting period of the underlying option, generally four
years, and, since the warrants are variable, at the time of issuance for warrants and/or each time there is a change
in the estimated fair value of the warrants increase.

6
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We have granted stock options to employees in exchange for services. Given the absence of an active
market for our common stock prior to our initial public offering in February 2005, we were required to estimate
the fair value of our common stock based on a variety of company and industry-specific factors for the purpose
of measuring the cost of the transaction and properly reflecting it in our financial statements.

We granted certain stock options during the year ended December 31, 2004 that resulted in deferred stock-
based compensation of $1.4 million. Deferred employee stock-based compensation represents the difference
between the estimated fair value of common stock, after considering the impact of our initial public offering, and
the option exercise price at the date of grant. It is recorded as a reduction to stockholders’ equity and is amortized
as compensation expense over the vesting period of the options, generally four years. The amount of deferred
employee stock-based compensation expensed for the year ended December 31, 2004 was $225,000. Based on
deferred employee stock-based compensation amounts recorded through December 31, 2004, the total
amortization expense for the years ending December 31, 2005, 2006, 2007 and 2008 will be $345,000, $345,000,
$345,000 and $160,000, respectively.

During the year ended December 31, 2004, pursuant to the anti-dilution provisions of the warrants originally
issued in September 2000 to our founders and as a result of the sale of our Series B preferred stock, we adjusted
the warrants to provide that our two founders may purchase an aggregate of 7,323,000 shares of our common
stock. As a result, we recorded $19.4 million of stock-based compensation expense to reflect the difference
between the deemed fair value of the underlying common stock and the warrant exercise price at June 30, 2004
for all warrants issued to date. On September 2, 2004, in conjunction with the sale of our Series C preferred
stock, the terms of the warrants were amended in order to fix the number of shares purchasable thereunder to an
aggregate of 12,856,572 shares and to remove the anti-dilution provisions. As a result, we recorded stock-based
compensation of $14.7 million based on the estimated fair value of the underlying common stock on September
2, 2004. We otherwise do not anticipate recording any additional stock-based compensation in connection with
these warrants.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123R, Share-Based Payment, which requires stock-based
compensation for an award of equity instruments, including stock options and employee stock purchase rights,
issued to employees to be recognized as a cost in the financial statements. The cost of these awards are measured
according to the grant date fair value of the stock options and is recognized over the period during which an
employee is required to provide service in exchange for the award, which is usually the vesting period. In the
absence of an observable market price for the stock awards, the grant-date fair value of the stock options would
be based upon a valuation methodology that takes into consideration various factors, including the exercise price
of the option, the expected term of the option, the current price of the underlying shares, the expected volatility of
the underlying share price, the expected dividends on the underlying shares and the risk-free interest rate. The
requirements of SFAS No. 123R are effective for us in the first interim or annual period beginning after June 15,
2005. The adoption of this standard is expected to increase operating expenses and we are currently evaluating
the extent of this impact on our financial statements.

Results of Operations

Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2004 and 2003

Revenues

Our revenue totaled $0.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2004 from development management
services performed under two master services agreements. We had no revenue during the same period in 2003.

7
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Research and Development

Research and development expenses increased to $11.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2004 from
$4.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2003. This increase primarily was due to:

• an increase of $3.6 million in our strategic core programs as a result of $1.1 million of clinical trial and
related costs and $2.5 million of milestone, licensing and other costs;

• an increase of $2.7 million in our partnering programs as a result of $1.0 million of clinical trial and
related costs and $1.7 million of licensing and other costs;

• a decrease of $0.9 million in our SOCC program as a result of $0.7 million of reduced pre-clinical
development when we redirected our resources to our strategic core and partnering programs and $0.2
million of other costs; and

• an increase of $1.3 million in unallocated expenses as a result of increased salaries and related personnel
costs due to increased research and development staff.

We expect that fees paid to external service providers will continue to increase as we acquire new product
candidates and continue development of our existing product candidates. We anticipate that our research and
development expenses will continue to increase in future periods, with the exception of our SOCC program
which will remain relatively constant, as we expend additional capital to conduct clinical trials and develop our
product candidates.

General and Administrative

General and administrative expenses increased to $3.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2004 from
$1.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2003. This increase primarily was due to $0.9 million of salaries
and related costs as we expanded our general and administrative functions to support our operations, $0.4 million
of legal fees, other professional fees and consulting fees and expenses paid to the chairman of our board of
directors, and $0.4 million of other expenses. We anticipate increases in general and administrative expenses in
future periods as we expand our administrative organization and incur additional costs for insurance and
professional fees associated with operating as a public company and to support the future growth of our research
and development organization.

Stock-Based Compensation

Stock-based compensation expenses totaled $34.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2004 due to the
issuance of warrants at exercise prices below the estimated fair value of our common stock and the amortization
of deferred stock-based compensation. We had no issuances of options or warrants during the comparable period
in 2003 that required us to record stock-based compensation expenses.

Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2003 and 2002

Research and Development

Research and development expenses totaled $4.7 million in 2003 compared to $5.6 million in 2002. The
$0.9 million decrease from 2002 to 2003 primarily was due to:

• a decrease of $1.4 million in discovery and pre-clinical activities as a result of the reduced scope of our
SOCC program;

• a decrease of $1.0 million in licensing and other costs related to our partnering programs;

• a decrease of $0.4 million in licensing and other costs related to our strategic core programs;

8
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• an increase of $1.3 million related to clinical trial and related costs in our strategic core programs;

• an increase of $0.5 million related to clinical trial and related costs in our partnering programs; and

• an increase of $0.2 million in unallocated costs as a result of increased salaries and related personnel
costs due to a larger research and development staff.

General and Administrative

General and administrative expenses totaled $1.5 million in 2003 compared to $1.5 million in 2002.
Although our total expenses remained constant from 2002 to 2003, several of the underlying account balances
fluctuated, including an increase of $0.1 million in salaries and related costs, $0.1 million in consulting fees and
related costs paid to the chairman of our board of directors, offset by decreases of $0.1 million in professional
fees and $0.1 million of other expenses.

Other Income, Net

Other income, net is primarily interest income earned on our cash and investment balances and totaled $0.1
million and $0.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The change in income
amounts for each year primarily was due to fluctuations in our average cash and investment balances and
downward interest rate trends.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Since our inception, our operations have been financed through the private placement of our equity
securities and through the public sale of our common stock in our initial public offering. Through December 31,
2004, we received net proceeds of $80.2 million from the sale of shares of preferred stock as follows:

• in October 2000 and August 2001, we issued and sold a total of 1,000,000 shares of Series A preferred
stock for aggregate net proceeds of $10 million;

• from March 2003 through May 2004, we issued and sold 291,150 shares of Series B preferred stock for
aggregate net proceeds of $26.8 million; and

• on September 2, 2004, we issued and sold 27,667,856 shares of Series C preferred stock for aggregate
net proceeds of $43.4 million.

In addition, on February 4, 2005, we completed an initial public offering of 30.0 million shares of common
stock for proceeds of $104.3 million, net of underwriting discounts and offering expenses.

On March 8, 2005, we completed the sale of 1,573,000 shares of our common stock for net proceeds of $5.6
million. The sale of these shares was the result of the underwriters exercising the overallotment option we
granted to them in connection with our initial public offering.

As of December 31, 2004, we had $50.8 million in cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities
available-for-sale as compared to $5.5 million as of December 31, 2003, an increase of $45.3 million. This
increase primarily resulted from completion of the sale of our Series B and Series C preferred stock. Net cash
used in operating activities amounted to $13.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2004, primarily
reflecting the net loss occurring for this period of $48.3 million, offset by non-cash charges for stock-based
compensation of $34.3 million. Net cash used in investing activities for the year ended December 31, 2004
consisted of $0.3 million of capital equipment purchases exclusive of $40.8 million for the purchases of
investments. Net cash provided by financing activities amounted to $59.2 million for the year ended December
31, 2004, primarily reflecting the sale of Series B and Series C preferred stock.

9
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The following summarizes our long-term contractual obligations as of December 31, 2004 (in thousands):

Contractual Obligations Total
2005 to

2006
2007 to

2008 Thereafter

Operating leases . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 1,325 $ 838 $ 487 $ —

As a specialty pharmaceutical company focused on acquiring, developing and commercializing innovative
pharmaceutical products, we have entered into numerous license agreements to acquire the rights to develop and
commercialize a variety of product candidates. Pursuant to these agreements, we obtained exclusive, except with
respect to various Asian countries, sublicenseable licenses to the patent rights and know-how for all indications
under the agreements. We generally will make an upfront payment and are required to make additional payments
upon the achievement of specific development and regulatory approval milestones. We are also obligated to pay
royalties under the agreements until the later of the expiration of the applicable patent or the applicable last date
of market exclusivity after the first commercial sale, on a country-by-country basis. The amount expended under
these agreements and charged to research and development expense during the years ended December 31, 2004,
2003 and 2002 was approximately $3.5 million, $0.3 million and $1.4 million, respectively. As of December 31,
2004, future potential milestone payments total approximately $90.35 million and there are no minimum
royalties required under any of the license agreements. The timing of these payments is subject to the
achievement of agreed upon milestones and, therefore, remains uncertain.

If we were to reach all of the milestones specified in each of our license agreements, we would be obligated
to make the following aggregate payments (in thousands):

As of December 31,
2004

MN-221 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 17,000
MN-029 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16,600
MN-001 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8,000
MN-305 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18,750
MN-166 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5,500
MN-246 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14,750
SOCC . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9,750

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 90,350

We also enter into agreements with third parties to manufacture our product candidates, conduct our clinical
trials and perform data collection and analysis. At this time, due to the variability of these agreements, we are
unable to estimate with certainty the future costs we will incur.

Our future capital uses and requirements depend on numerous forward-looking factors. These factors
include but are not limited to the following:

• the progress of our clinical trials;

• the progress of our pre-clinical development activities;

• our ability to establish and maintain strategic collaborations, including by sub-licensing product
candidates;

• the costs involved in enforcing or defending patent claims and other intellectual property rights;

• the costs and timing of regulatory approvals;

10
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• the costs of establishing or expanding manufacturing, sales and distribution capabilities;

• the success of the commercialization of our products; and

• the extent to which we acquire or invest in other products, technologies and businesses.

We believe that our existing cash and cash equivalents will be sufficient to meet our projected operating
requirements through at least December 31, 2006.

Until we can generate significant cash from our operations, we expect to continue to fund our operations
with existing cash resources that primarily were generated from the proceeds of offerings of our equity securities
and from equipment and leasehold improvement financing. In addition, we may finance future cash needs
through the sale of other equity securities, strategic collaboration agreements and debt financing. However, we
may not be successful in obtaining collaboration agreements, or in receiving milestone or royalty payments under
those agreements. In addition, we cannot be sure that our existing cash and marketable securities resources will
be adequate or that additional financing will be available when needed or that, if available, financing will be
obtained on terms favorable to us or our stockholders. Having insufficient funds may require us to delay, scale
back or eliminate some or all of our research or development programs or to relinquish greater or all rights to
product candidates at an earlier stage of development or on less favorable terms than we would otherwise choose.
Failure to obtain adequate financing also may adversely affect our ability to operate as a going concern. If we
raise additional funds by issuing equity securities, substantial dilution to existing stockholders would likely
result. If we raise additional funds by incurring debt financing, the terms of the debt may involve significant cash
payment obligations as well as covenants and specific financial ratios that may restrict our ability to operate our
business.

Controls and Procedures

Our Chief Executive Officer, acting in his capacity as our principal executive officer and principal financial
and accounting officer, has evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, or the Exchange Act. Based upon his evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer
has concluded that, as of December 31, 2004, our disclosure controls and procedures are effective in alerting him
on a timely basis to material information relating to us required to be included in our periodic filings under the
Exchange Act.

11
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of MediciNova, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of MediciNova, Inc., as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and
the related statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2004, and the statement of stockholders’ equity for the period from September 26, 2000
(inception) to December 31, 2000. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of internal
control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of MediciNova, Inc., at December 31, 2004 and 2003, the results of its operations and its cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2004, and the statement of stockholders’ equity for the
period from September 26, 2000 (inception) to December 31, 2000, in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles in the United States.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

San Diego, California
March 8, 2005

F-2



 ˆ1VYPH=1GGF7X79HoŠ
1VYPH=1GGF7X79H

99344 FIN 3MEDICINOVA, INC.
FORM 10-K

16-Mar-2005 16:32 EST
CLN PSSDI

RR Donnelley ProFile TOR nguyb0to
START PAGE

2*
PMT 1C

TORFBU-2K-PF001
8.8.12

MediciNova, Inc.
(a development stage company)

Balance Sheets

December 31,
2004 2003

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 38,801,328 $ 4,240,699
Marketable securities available-for-sale . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12,000,000 1,250,000
Prepaid expenses and other current assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 487,576 108,360

Total current assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 51,288,904 5,599,059
Property and equipment, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 308,187 32,250
Other assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,171,504 —

$ 53,768,595 $ 5,631,309

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 469,798 $ 329,328
Accrued expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,552,622 294,500
Accrued compensation and related expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 562,656 137,599

Total current liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,585,076 761,427
Deferred rent . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 31,321 —
Advances received for the sale of convertible preferred stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 300,000
Commitments
Redeemable convertible preferred stock, $0.01 par value; 27,667,856 and no

shares authorized, issued and outstanding at December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 43,483,076 —

Stockholders’ equity:
Convertible preferred stock, $0.01 par value; 1,291,150 and 3,000,000

shares authorized at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively;
1,291,150 and 1,107,500 shares issued and outstanding at December 31,
2004 and 2003, respectively . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12,912 11,075

Common stock, $0.001 par value; 83,000,000 and 80,000,000 shares
authorized at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively; 500,000 shares
issued and outstanding at December 31, 2004 and 2003 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 500 500

Additional paid-in capital . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 103,603,132 19,694,972
Deferred employee stock-based compensation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1,194,721) —
Deficit accumulated during the development stage . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (94,752,701) (15,136,665)

Total stockholders’ equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7,669,122 4,569,882

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 53,768,595 $ 5,631,309

See accompanying notes.
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MediciNova, Inc.
(a development stage company)

Statements of Operations

Years ended December 31,

Period from
September 26,

2000 (inception)
to December 31,

20042004 2003 2002

Revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 490,282 $ — $ — $ 490,282
Operating expenses:

Cost of revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 437,582 — — 437,582
Research and development . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11,210,285 4,723,158 5,551,310 22,708,093
General and administrative . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,160,306 1,537,945 1,461,526 7,223,217
Amortization of employee stock-based

compensation and founders’ warrants:
Research and development . . . . . . . . . . . . . 106,770 — — 106,770
General and administrative . . . . . . . . . . . . . 34,187,725 — — 34,187,725

Total operating expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 49,102,668 6,261,103 7,012,836 64,663,387

Operating loss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (48,612,386) (6,261,103) (7,012,836) (64,173,105)
Other income, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 339,783 51,973 81,360 763,837

Net loss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (48,272,603) (6,209,130) (6,931,476) (63,409,268)
Accretion to redemption value of redeemable

convertible preferred stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (78,756) — — (78,756)
Deemed dividend resulting from beneficial

conversion feature on Series C redeemable
convertible preferred stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (31,264,677) — — (31,264,677)

Net loss applicable to common stockholders . . . $(79,616,036) $(6,209,130) $(6,931,476) $(94,752,701)

Basic and diluted net loss per share . . . . . . . . . . . $ (159.23) $ (12.42) $ (13.86)

Shares used to compute basic and diluted net
loss per share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 500,000 500,000 500,000

Pro forma net loss per common share assuming
conversion of preferred stock, basic and
diluted (unaudited) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ (1.85)

Shares used in computing pro forma net loss per
common share assuming conversion of
preferred stock, basic and diluted
(unaudited) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 42,943,281

See accompanying notes.
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MediciNova, Inc.
(a development stage company)

Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

Convertible
preferred stock Common stock Additional

paid-in capital
Deferred

compensation

Deficit
accumulated
during the

development
stage

Total
stockholders’

equityShares Amount Shares Amount

Issuance of common stock for cash to founders at $0.10 per share in
September . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — $ — 500,000 $500 $ 49,500 $ — $ — $ 50,000

Issuance of Series A convertible preferred stock at $10 per share in
October . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 500,000 5,000 — — 4,995,000 — — 5,000,000

Net loss and comprehensive loss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — — — — — (201,325) (201,325)

Balance at December 31, 2000 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 500,000 5,000 500,000 500 5,044,500 — (201,325) 4,848,675
Issuance of Series A convertible preferred stock at $10 per share in

August . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 500,000 5,000 — — 4,995,000 — — 5,000,000
Net loss and comprehensive loss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — — — — — (1,794,734) (1,794,734)

Balance at December 31, 2001 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,000,000 10,000 500,000 500 10,039,500 — (1,996,059) 8,053,941
Net loss and comprehensive loss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — — — — — (6,931,476) (6,931,476)

Balance at December 31, 2002 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,000,000 10,000 500,000 500 10,039,500 — (8,927,535) 1,122,465
Issuance of Series B convertible preferred stock at $100 per share, net of

issuance costs of $1,093,453, in March, April, May and December . . . . . 107,500 1,075 — — 9,655,472 — — 9,656,547
Net loss and comprehensive loss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — — — — — (6,209,130) (6,209,130)

Balance at December 31, 2003 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,107,500 11,075 500,000 500 19,694,972 — (15,136,665) 4,569,882
Issuance of Series B convertible preferred stock at $100 per share, net of

issuance costs of $1,208,896, in January, February, March, April and
May . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 183,650 1,837 — — 17,154,267 — — 17,156,104

Stock-based compensation related to founders’ warrants . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — — — 34,069,916 — — 34,069,916
Deferred employee stock-based compensation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — — — 1,419,300 (1,419,300) — —
Amortization of deferred employee stock-based compensation . . . . . . . . . . . — — — — — 224,579 — 224,579
Deemed dividend resulting from beneficial conversion feature on Series C

redeemable convertible preferred stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — — — 31,264,677 — (31,264,677) —
Accretion to redemption value of redeemable convertible preferred stock . . — — — — — — (78,756) (78,756)
Net loss and comprehensive loss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — — — — — (48,272,603) (48,272,603)

Balance at December 31, 2004 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,291,150 $12,912 500,000 $500 $103,603,132 $(1,194,721) $(94,752,701) $ 7,669,122

See accompanying notes.
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MediciNova, Inc.
(a development stage company)

Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended December 31,

Period from
September 26,

2000 (inception)
to December 31,

20042004 2003 2002

Operating activities:
Net loss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ (48,272,603) $ (6,209,130) $ (6,931,476) $ (63,409,268)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash

used in operating activities:
Non-cash stock-based compensation . . . . . 34,294,495 — — 34,294,495
Depreciation and amortization . . . . . . . . . . 45,298 29,872 68,072 165,219
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Prepaid expenses and other assets . . . . . . . . (379,216) (49,394) (30,648) (487,576)
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and

deferred rent . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 340,493 444,412 166,471 964,321
Due to affiliate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — (265,466) (37,660) —
Accrued compensation and related

expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 425,057 118,456 9,843 562,656

Net cash used in operating activities . . . . . . . . (13,546,476) (5,931,250) (6,755,398) (27,910,153)
Investing activities:

Purchases of marketable securities
available-for-sale . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (10,750,000) (1,250,000) — (12,000,000)

Acquisitions of property and equipment . . . (321,235) (10,537) (17,014) (668,227)
Proceeds from sale of property and

equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 194,821 — 194,821

Net cash used in investing activities . . . . . . . . (11,071,235) (1,065,716) (17,014) (12,473,406)
Financing activities:

Sales of common stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — — 50,000
Payment of IPO issuance costs . . . . . . . . . . (1,082,084) — — (1,082,084)
Sales of preferred stock, net of issuance

costs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 60,560,424 9,656,547 — 80,216,971
Advances received for the sale of

convertible preferred stock . . . . . . . . . . . (300,000) 300,000 — —

Net cash provided by financing activities . . . . 59,178,340 9,956,547 — 79,184,887

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents . . . . 34,560,629 2,959,581 (6,772,412) 38,801,328
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of

period . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,240,699 1,281,118 8,053,530 —

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period . . . . $ 38,801,328 $ 4,240,699 $ 1,281,118 $ 38,801,328

See accompanying notes.
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MediciNova, Inc.
(a development stage company)

Notes to Financial Statements

1. The Company, Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Company

We were incorporated in the state of Delaware in September 2000. We are a specialty pharmaceutical company
focused on the acquisition, development and commercialization of innovative pharmaceutical products. Our in-
licensed compounds and our pipeline, which includes several compounds in clinical testing, target a variety of
prevalent medical conditions, including premature labor, cancer and asthma (see Note 5).

Basis of Presentation

Our primary activities since incorporation have been organizational activities, including recruiting personnel,
establishing office facilities, conducting research and development, performing business and financial planning
and raising capital. Accordingly, we are considered to be in the development stage.

We have sustained operating losses since inception and expect such losses to continue over the next several
years. Management plans to continue financing the operations with a combination of equity issuances and debt
arrangements. If adequate funds are not available, we may be required to delay, reduce the scope of, or eliminate
one or more of its research or development programs, or cease operations. On February 4, 2005, we completed an
initial public offering of 30.0 million shares of common stock for proceeds of $104.3 million, net of estimated
underwriting discounts and offering expenses. We are a public company in both the United States and Japan and
our stock is traded on the Hercules market of the Osaka Securities Exchange.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements as well as the reported revenues and
expenses during the reporting periods. On an ongoing basis, management evaluates their estimates and
judgments. Management bases estimates on historical experience and on various other factors that they believe
are reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the
carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consists of cash, and other highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less from the date of purchase.

Marketable Securities Available-for-sale

Investments with an original maturity of more than three months are considered short-term investments and have
been classified by management as marketable securities available-for-sale. Such investments consist of municipal
auction rate securities, and are carried at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses, if any, included as a
separate component of stockholders’ equity. As of December 31, 2004, there is no difference between cost and
fair market value.
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MediciNova, Inc.
(a development stage company)

Notes to Financial Statements

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject us to a significant concentration of credit risk consist primarily of
cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities available-for-sale. We maintain deposits in federally insured
financial institutions in excess of federally insured limits. However, management believes we are not exposed to
significant credit risk due to the financial position of the depository institutions in which those deposits are held.
Additionally, we have established guidelines regarding diversification of our investments and their maturities,
which are designed to maintain safety and liquidity.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Our financial instruments including cash and cash equivalents, accounts payable, and accrued liabilities, are
carried at cost, which we believe approximates fair value given their short-term nature.

Other Assets

Other assets consist of costs associated with our initial public offering. Upon completion of our initial public
offering in February 2005, these costs will be accounted for as a reduction to the gross proceeds of the offering in
the statement of stockholders’ equity.

Property and Equipment

Property, which consists of leasehold improvements, and equipment is stated at cost and depreciated using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets. The useful life for equipment is five
years and leasehold improvements are amortized over the lesser of the useful life or the term of the lease. Our
current lease expires in 2008.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

We review long-lived assets, including property and equipment, for impairment whenever events or changes in
business circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be fully recoverable. An
impairment loss would be recognized when estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to result from the
use of the asset and its eventual disposition are less than its carrying amount. The impairment loss, if recognized,
would be based on the excess of the carrying value of the impaired asset over its respective fair value.
Impairment, if any, is assessed using discounted cash flows.

Revenue Recognition

In connection with the management of clinical trials, we pay, on behalf of our customers, fees to investigators
and other pass-through costs for which it is reimbursed at cost, without mark-up or profit. In addition, we charge
management fees based on negotiated hourly rates pursuant to master services agreements with Asahi Kasei
Pharma Corporation and Argenes, Inc. We recognize management fees based on actual hours worked and
recognize pass-through expenses as revenue when the related liability is incurred in accordance with Emerging
Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Rule No. 01-14, Income Statement Characterization of Reimbursements Received for
“Out-of-Pocket” Expenses Incurred. EITF No. 01-14 requires reimbursable pass-through expenses incurred to be
characterized as revenue in the statement of operations. Pass-through costs represent the majority of cost of
revenues during the year ended December 31, 2004.
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MediciNova, Inc.
(a development stage company)

Notes to Financial Statements

Asahi Kasei Master Services Agreement

Pursuant to the master services agreement with Asahi Kasei Pharma Corporation, we provide Asahi with
consulting and contract management services in connection with the development of pharmaceutical products.
Under the agreement, we are currently working on one compound. The master services agreement may be
terminated by either party following an uncured default of its material obligations under the agreement. Either
party may terminate the agreement upon three months’ written notice. In addition, Asahi may terminate any
project-specific addendum to the agreement immediately at any time upon written notice. The term of this
agreement is indefinite and depends on the completion of services as provided for in the agreement. For the year
ended December 31, 2004 we recognized $455,195 of revenue under this agreement.

Argenes Master Services Agreement

Pursuant to the master services agreement with Argenes Inc., we provide Argenes with consulting and contract
management services in connection with the development of pharmaceutical products. Under the agreement, we
are working on one compound. The master services agreement may be terminated by either party following an
uncured default of its material obligations under the agreement. Either party may terminate the agreement upon
three months’ written notice. In addition, Argenes may terminate any project-specific addendum to the agreement
immediately at any time upon written notice. The term of this agreement is indefinite and depends on the
completion of services as provided for in the agreement. For the year ended December 31, 2004 we recognized
$35,087 of revenue under this agreement.

Research and Development

Research and development expenses consist of costs incurred to further our research and development activities
and includes salaries and related employee benefits, costs associated with clinical trials, non-clinical activities
such as toxicology testing, regulatory activities, research-related overhead expenses, and fees paid to external
service providers and contract research organizations who conduct certain research and development activities on
our behalf. Research and development expenses also include fees for licensed technology for which technological
feasibility has not been established and there are no alternative uses. Research and development costs are
expensed as incurred.

Income Taxes

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 109, Accounting for Income
Taxes, a deferred tax asset or liability is determined based on the difference between the financial statement and
the tax basis of assets and liabilities as measured by the enacted tax rates, which will be in effect when these
differences reverse. We provide a valuation allowance against net deferred tax assets unless, based upon the
available evidence, it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will be realized.

Stock-Based Compensation

We have elected to follow Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees, and related Interpretations in accounting for its employee stock options and warrants as permitted by
SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation. Under APB Opinion No. 25, if the exercise price of
our employee stock options or warrants is not less than the fair value of the underlying stock on the date of grant,
no compensation expense is recognized. In determining the fair value of the common stock, the Board of
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Notes to Financial Statements

Directors considered, among other factors, (i) the advancement of our technology, (ii) our financial position and
(iii) the fair value of our common stock or preferred stock as determined in arm’s-length transactions.

In connection with the grant of certain stock options to employees during the year ended December 31, 2004, we
recorded deferred stock-based compensation within stockholders’ equity of $1,419,300, which represents the
difference between the estimated fair value of the common stock and the option exercise price at the date of grant
(also see Note 6, “Founders’ Common Stock and Warrants”). Such amount will be amortized over the vesting
period of the applicable options on a straight-line basis. The expected future amortization expense for deferred
stock-based compensation for stock option grants through December 31, 2004 is as follows:

2005 $ 344,525
2006 344,525
2007 344,525
2008 161,146

$1,194,721

Pro forma information regarding net loss is required by SFAS No. 123, and has been determined as if we had
accounted for all of our employee stock option grants under the fair value method of that statement. The fair
value for these options was estimated at the date of grant using the Minimum Value pricing model with the
following weighted average assumptions:

Years ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002

Dividend yield — — —
Risk-free interest rate 3.9% 3.0% 3.8%
Volatility — — —
Expected life 5 years 5 years 5 years

For purposes of disclosures required by SFAS No. 123, the estimated fair value of the options is amortized on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period. Our pro forma information is as follows:

Years ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002

Net loss applicable to common stockholders, as reported $ (79,616,036) $ (6,209,130) $ (6,931,476)

Add: total stock-based employee compensation expense
included in reported net loss 34,294,495 — —

Deduct: stock-based employee compensation expense
determined under the fair value method (17,946,851) (21,500) —

Adjusted net loss applicable to common stockholders $ (63,268,392) $ (6,230,630) $ (6,931,476)

Basic and diluted net loss per share, as reported $ (159.23) $ (12.42) $ (13.86)

Adjusted basic and diluted net loss per share $ (126.54) $ (12.46) $ (13.86)

The adjusted net loss for the year ended December 31, 2004 is less than the reported net loss due to variable
measurement of the fair value of the founders’ warrants required by APB No. 25 as compared to grant date
measurement of fair value required by SFAS No. 123.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Comprehensive Income

We have adopted SFAS No. 130, Reporting Comprehensive Income, which requires that all components of
comprehensive income, including net income, be reported in the financial statements in the period in which they
are recognized. Comprehensive income is defined as the change in equity during a period from transactions and
other events and circumstances from non-owner sources. Net income and other comprehensive income, including
foreign currency translation adjustments and unrealized gains and losses on investments, shall be reported, net of
their related tax effect, to arrive at comprehensive income. Comprehensive loss did not differ from net loss for all
periods presented.

Net Loss Per Share

Basic net loss per share attributable to common stockholders is calculated by dividing the net loss by the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the period, without consideration for common stock
equivalents. Diluted net loss per share is computed by dividing the net loss attributable to common stockholders
by the weighted average number of common share equivalents outstanding for the period determined using the
treasury-stock method. For purposes of this calculation, convertible preferred stock, stock options, and warrants
are considered to be common stock equivalents and are only included in the calculation of diluted net loss per
share when their effect is dilutive.

The unaudited pro forma basic and diluted net loss per share is calculated by dividing the net loss by the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the period plus the weighted average number of
common shares resulting from the assumed conversion of the outstanding shares of convertible preferred stock at
December 31, 2004 which occurred upon the closing of our initial public offering in February 2005. The assumed
conversion is calculated using the as-if-converted method, as if such conversion had occurred as of the beginning
of each period presented or the original issuance, if later.
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Years ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002

Historical

Numerator:

Net loss $(48,272,603) $ (6,209,130) $ (6,931,476)

Accretion to redemption value of redeemable convertible preferred stock (78,756) — —
Deemed dividend resulting form beneficial conversion feature of Series C

redeemable convertible preferred stock (31,264,677) — —

Net loss applicable to common stockholders $(79,616,036) $ (6,209,130) $ (6,931,476)

Denominator:

Weighted average common shares outstanding 500,000 500,000 500,000

Basic and diluted net loss per share $ (159.23) $ (12.42) $ (13.86)

Pro Forma

Pro forma net loss (79,537,280)

Pro forma basic and diluted net loss per share (unaudited) $ (1.85)

Shares used above 500,000

Pro forma adjustments to reflect assumed weighted average effect of
conversion of preferred stock (unaudited) 42,443,281

Pro forma shares used to compute basic and diluted net loss per share
(unaudited) 42,943,281

Historical outstanding anti-dilutive securities not included in diluted net
loss per share calculation

Preferred stock (as-converted) 66,782,856 20,750,000 10,000,000

Common stock warrants 13,356,572 3,650,000 1,500,000

Common stock options 1,550,000 390,000 424,000

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123R, Share-Based Payment, which requires stock-based
compensation for an award of equity instruments, including stock options and employee stock purchase rights,
issued to employees to be recognized as a cost in the financial statements. The cost of these awards are measured
according to the grant date fair value of the stock options and is recognized over the period during which an
employee is required to provide service in exchange for the award, which is usually the vesting period. In the
absence of an observable market price for the stock awards, the grant-date fair value of the stock options would
be based upon a valuation methodology that takes into consideration various factors, including the exercise price
of the option, the expected term of the option, the current price of the underlying shares, the expected volatility of
the underlying share price, the expected dividends on the underlying shares and the risk-free interest rate. The
requirements of SFAS No. 123R are effective for us in the first interim or annual period beginning after June 15,
2005. The adoption of this standard is expected to increase operating expenses and we are currently evaluating
the extent of this impact on our financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2. Balance Sheet Details

Property and equipment consist of the following:

December 31,
2004

December 31,
2003

Leasehold improvements $ 35,414 $ —
Furniture and equipment 321,136 39,852
Software 11,299 7,038

367,849 46,890
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (59,662) (14,640)

$ 308,187 $ 32,250

Accrued expenses consist of the following:

December 31,
2004

December 31,
2003

Research and development costs $ 245,380 $ —
Issuance costs 1,082,428 150,000
Franchise taxes 19,784 74,525
Other 205,030 69,975

$ 1,552,622 $ 294,500

The accrued issuance costs at December 2004 and 2003 consist of costs related to our initial public offering and
our Series B preferred stock sale, respectively.

3. Related Party Transactions

Research Services Agreement

During 2001, we entered into a research services agreement with Tanabe Research Laboratories U.S.A., Inc.
(“TRL”). Under this agreement, we paid TRL for research services provided pursuant to approved service plans
at a rate of $250,000 per year per FTE (full time equivalent of a scientist engaged in performing services under
agreement). The agreement was terminated on May 31, 2003. In addition, TRL charged us for certain
administrative expenses beginning in September 2000. During the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002,
respectively, the gross research and administrative fees paid to TRL were $737,199 and $2,652,944, respectively.
As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, no amounts were payable to TRL.

Sale of Equipment

In May 2003, we sold equipment to TRL for proceeds of $194,821. The net book value of the equipment on the
date of sale was equal to the sale price and therefore no gain or loss was recorded.

Other Related-Party Transactions

Our board of directors approved an arrangement in September 2001 to engage Dr. Yuichi Iwaki, Chairman of the
Board, as a consultant in connection with financing transactions and business development activities, pursuant to
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which we pay Dr. Iwaki $20,000 per month plus other cash or stock compensation, if any, as the board of
directors deems appropriate for his services rendered. Compensation earned by Dr. Iwaki during the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 was $360,000, $190,000, and $148,000, respectively.

4. Commitments

Facility Lease

In 2004, we leased our corporate headquarters under a non-cancelable operating lease that expires in February
2008. We have the option to renew the lease for three years. Rent expense for the years ended December 31,
2004, 2003 and 2002 and the period from September 26, 2000 (inception) to December 31, 2004 was $310,596,
$126,759, $34,284 and $509,399, respectively.

Future minimum payments are as follows at December 31, 2004:

Operating
Lease

2005 $ 402,666
2006 435,356
2007 448,997
2008 37,511

$1,324,530

5. License Agreements

As a specialty pharmaceutical we focus on acquiring, developing and commercializing innovative
pharmaceutical products, we have entered into numerous license agreements to acquire the rights to develop and
commercialize a variety of product candidates. Pursuant to these agreements, we have obtained exclusive, except
with respect to various Asian countries, sublicenseable licenses to the patent rights and know-how for all
indications under the agreements. We generally make an upfront payment and are required to make additional
payments upon the achievement of specific development and regulatory approval milestones. We are also
obligated to pay royalties under the agreements until the later of the expiration of the applicable patent or the
applicable last date of market exclusivity after the first commercial sale, on a country-by-country basis.

The amount expended under these agreements and charged to research and development expense during the years
ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 was approximately $3,500,000, $300,000 and $1,400,000,
respectively. As of December 31, 2004, future potential milestone payments totaled approximately $90.35
million and there are no minimum royalties required under any of the license agreements. From June 19, 2002,
the date of our first license agreement, through December 31, 2004, we have entered into seven license
agreements with Japanese and British pharmaceutical companies and a research institute.

6. Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock and Stockholders’ Equity

Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock

On September 2, 2004, we sold 27,667,856 shares of Series C redeemable convertible preferred stock at a
purchase price of $1.62 per share for total net proceeds of $43,404,320, net of $1,417,607 of estimated issuance
costs.
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The Series C preferred stock was sold at a price per share below our initial public offering price. Accordingly,
pursuant to EITF Issue No. 98-5, Accounting for Convertible Securities with Beneficial Conversion Features, we
recorded a deemed dividend on the Series C preferred stock of $31,264,677, which is equal to the number of
shares of Series C preferred stock sold multiplied by the difference between the estimated fair value of the
underlying common stock and the Series C preferred stock conversion price per share. The deemed dividend
increased the net loss applicable to common stockholders in the calculation of basic and diluted net loss per
common share and was reported as a charge to accumulated deficit and a credit to additional paid-in capital, with
no net impact on total stockholders’ equity.

Each share of the Series C preferred stock is convertible at the option of the holder at any time into shares of our
common stock, at a one-for-one conversion rate, subject to adjustment under certain conditions.

The holders of shares of Series C preferred stock are entitled to receive non-cumulative dividends at a rate of
$0.1296 per share per annum, when and if declared by the Board of Directors and prior to the payment of any
dividend on any other capital stock. No dividend or distribution can be paid on any share of common stock unless
a dividend or distribution is paid or declared with respect to each share of Series A, B and C preferred stock.

The holders of each share of Series C preferred stock have the right to one vote for each share of common stock
into which their shares are convertible.

In the event of our liquidation, dissolution or winding up, before any distribution or payment shall be made to
any other common or preferred stockholder, holders of Series C preferred stock are entitled to a liquidation
preference of $1.62 per share plus any declared and unpaid dividends.

The Series A, B and C preferred shares will automatically convert into common shares at a conversion rate of
ten-to-one, 100-to-one and one-to-one, respectively, upon the closing of a firmly underwritten public offering
pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act of 1933 (as amended) resulting in at least
$40,000,000 of gross proceeds.

The redemption provisions of the Series C preferred stock stipulate that at any time beginning in August 2010,
upon request of holders of at least a majority of the then outstanding Series C preferred stock, we are required to
redeem the Series C preferred stock of each requesting holder. The redemption shall take place in three equal
annual installments with the initial redemption no later than 60 days after redemption is requested. The
redemption price is equal to $1.62 plus any declared and unpaid dividends at the date of the redemption request
and is limited to funds legally available. We are accreting the difference between the carrying value and
redemption value of the Series C preferred stock over the period up to the first redemption date of August 2010.

Convertible Preferred Stock

The authorized, issued and outstanding shares of convertible preferred stock by series are as follows at
December 31, 2004 and 2003:

December 31, 2004 December 31, 2003

Shares
Authorized

Shares
Issued and

Outstanding
Carrying

Value

Aggregate
Liquidation
Preference

Shares
Authorized

Shares
Issued and

Outstanding
Carrying

Value

Aggregate
Liquidation
Preference

Series A . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,000,000 1,000,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000
Series B . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 291,150 291,150 26,812,651 29,115,000 500,000 107,500 9,656,547 10,750,000
Undesignated . . . . . . . . . . . . — — — — 1,500,000 — — —

1,291,150 1,291,150 $36,812,651 $39,115,000 3,000,000 1,107,500 $19,656,547 $20,750,000
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No dividend or distribution can be paid on any share of common stock unless a dividend or distribution is paid or
declared with respect to each share of Series A and B convertible preferred stock.

The Series A and B convertible preferred stock must vote equally with the shares of the common stock and not as
a separate class at any annual or special meeting of our stockholders. Upon our liquidation, dissolution, or
winding up, the holders of convertible preferred stock would be entitled to be paid out of our assets an amount
per share of convertible preferred stock equal to the original issue price (Series A of $10, Series B of $100) plus
all declared and unpaid dividends.

Each share of the Series A and B convertible preferred stock is convertible at the option of the holder at any time
into shares of our common stock, at a conversion rate of 10 shares of common stock for each share of Series A
convertible preferred stock and at a conversion rate of 100 shares of common stock for each share of Series B
convertible preferred stock subject to adjustment under certain conditions.

Founders’ Common Stock and Warrants

At inception, we issued a total of 500,000 shares of our common stock to two or our founders who then became
officers and directors, for proceeds of $50,000. We also granted the two officers and directors warrants to
purchase 500,000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $0.10. The warrants contained an
antidilution clause providing the founders with the right to purchase additional shares of common stock any time
there was a dilution event so that they could maintain their original ownership percentage. The warrants are
considered variable and, unless the number of underlying shares of common stock become fixed or exercised,
will require compensation to be recorded when the fair value of the underlying options exceeds the exercise
price. As of December 31, 2003, as a result of the Series A and Series B preferred stock sales, the warrants were
adjusted to allow the holders to purchase up to 3,650,000 shares of common stock. The warrants expire on
September 26, 2007. Based on our early stage of development, its limited resources, and the preferences of the
preferred stock, we believe that the fair value of the underlying shares of common stock did not exceed the
exercise price of the warrants at December 31, 2003.

From January through May 2004, in conjunction with the sale of Series B preferred stock, the common stock
underlying the warrants were adjusted up to 7,323,000. Based on subsequent financing activities and the price of
our initial public offering, we believe that the estimated fair value of the 7,323,000 shares exceeded the $0.10
exercise price of the warrants and, as a result, recorded stock-based compensation in general and administrative
expense in the amount of $19,405,950.

On September 2, 2004, in conjunction with the sale of Series C preferred stock, we and our two founders
amended the terms of our warrant agreements. In exchange for relinquishing any future anti-dilution rights, the
number of underlying common shares that could be purchased under the terms of the warrants was increased and
fixed at 12,856,572, up from 7,323,000. Since all of the warrants were previously variable, we recorded
additional stock-based compensation in general and administrative expense of $14,663,966 based on the
estimated fair value of the underlying common stock on September 2, 2004 for a total of $34,069,916. Since the
number of warrants became fixed at September 2, 2004, no additional compensation will be recorded.
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Other Warrants

In May 2004, as compensation for fundraising efforts related to the sale of Series B preferred stock, we issued to
BioVen Advisory, Inc. a warrant to purchase 500,000 shares of common stock with an exercise price of $1.00.
The warrant was valued at the $250,000 cash value of the services performed. The warrant issuance had no net
impact on the financial statements because the transaction resulted in both a charge and a credit to additional
paid-in capital.

Stock Options

We have a stock incentive plan (the “Plan”) under which incentive stock options may be granted for 2,000,000
shares of common stock to our officers and key employees. Stock options have been granted with an exercise
price of $1.00 per share and vest 25% after the first year of service from the grant date, with the remaining shares
vesting in equal monthly installments over the subsequent 36 months of service. An employee may exercise
stock options prior to vesting in which case we have the right to repurchase the unvested shares at the original
exercise price if the employee is terminated before vesting in all shares occurs.

Following the vesting period, options are exercisable until the earlier of 90 days after the employee’s termination
with us or the ten-year anniversary of the initial grant, subject to adjustment under certain conditions. We have
the right to purchase all of those shares that the employees have or will acquire under these stock options. The
purchase price for any vested shares repurchased will be the greater of the fair market value of such shares on the
date of purchase or the aggregate exercise price for such shares.

A summary of our stock option activity and related information is as follows:

Options

Weighted
average

exercise price

Balance at December 31, 2001 220,000 $ 1.00
Granted 204,000 $ 1.00

Balance at December 31, 2002 424,000 $ 1.00
Granted 70,000 $ 1.00
Cancelled (104,000) $ 1.00

Balance at December 31, 2003 390,000 $ 1.00
Granted 1,160,000 $ 1.00

Balance at December 31, 2004 1,550,000 $ 1.00

The exercise price for all vested and unvested options outstanding for all periods presented was $1.00 per share.
The weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding at December 31, 2004 and 2003 was 8.9
and 8.1 years, respectively. The weighted average fair value of options granted during the period from September
26, 2000 (inception) to December 31, 2000 and for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2002, 2003 was
immaterial. The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year ended December 31, 2004 was
approximately $1.37. At December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, 282,915 and 161,250 options were vested.
No options have been exercised since Plan inception.
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Common Stock Reserved for Future Issuance

Common stock reserved for future issuance consists of the following:

December 31,
2004

December 31,
2003

Conversion of preferred stock 66,782,856 20,750,000
Common stock warrants 13,356,572 3,650,000
Common stock options outstanding 1,550,000 390,000
Common stock options authorized for future grant 450,000 1,610,000

82,139,428 26,400,000

7. Income Taxes

From January 1, 2001 through March 31, 2003, we were included in the consolidated federal tax return of Tanabe
Holding America, Inc., the U.S. holding Company of Tanabe Seiyaku Co., Ltd., and filed a combined California
tax return from January 1, 2001 through December 31, 2003. Under a tax allocation agreement with Tanabe
Holding America, Inc. and affiliates effective January 1, 2001, the combined tax liability was allocated based on
each company’s share of taxable income. Subsequent to March 31, and December 31, 2003, respectively, we file
on a stand alone basis for federal and California income tax purposes.

The significant components of the Company’s deferred income taxes at December 31, 2004 and 2003 are as
follows:

December 31,
2004 2003

Deferred tax assets:
Net operating loss carryforwards $ 8,647,000 $ 4,347,000
Capitalized licenses 1,821,000 501,000
Research tax credits 327,000 —
Other, net 14,000 28,000

Net deferred tax assets 10,809,000 4,876,000
Less valuation allowance (10,809,000) (4,876,000)

$ — $ —

We have established a valuation allowance against its deferred tax assets due to the uncertainty that such assets
will be realized. Management periodically evaluates the recoverability of the deferred tax assets. At such time as
it is determined that it is more likely than not that deferred tax assets will be realizable, the valuation allowance
will be reduced.

At December 31, 2004, we had federal and California net operating loss carryforwards of approximately
$22,864,000 and $11,215,000, respectively. The federal net operating loss carryforwards begin to expire in 2022,
and the California net operating loss carryforwards begin to expire in 2007. At December 31, 2004, we also had
federal research tax credit carryforwards of approximately $327,000, which begin to expire in 2022.
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Pursuant to Section 382 and 383 of the Internal Revenue Code, annual use of our net operating loss
carryforwards may be limited if certain cumulative changes of ownership result in a change of control of our
company.

8. Employee Savings Plan

We have an employee savings plan available to substantially all employees. Under the plan, an employee may
elect salary reductions which are contributed to the plan. The plan provides for discretionary contributions by us,
which totaled $87,359, $37,041, $22,231 and $166,456 for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002
and the period from September 26, 2000 (inception) to December 31, 2004, respectively.

9. Subsequent Events

Changes in Capitalization

We completed our initial public offering on February 4, 2005. In addition to the issuance of 30,000,000 shares of
our common stock, we had the following changes in capitalization:

• filed a restated certificate of incorporation to provide for authorized capital stock of 200,000,000 shares
of common stock and 5,000,000 shares of undesignated preferred stock; and

• reserved 20,300,000 shares of common stock for the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan and our 2000 General
Stock Incentive Plan was terminated. The 450,000 shares available for future grant under this plan were
also cancelled.

On March 8, 2005, the underwriters also exercised the overallotment option we granted to them in connection
with our initial public offering and we issued an additional 1,573,000 shares of our common stock at $3.53 per
share.
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The following sets forth the changes to our balance sheet as if the initial public offering had been completed as of
December 31, 2004.

The pro forma information gives effect to (1) the filing of a restated certificate of incorporation to provide for
authorized capital stock of 200,000,000 shares of common stock and 5,000,000 shares of undesignated preferred
stock, (2) the sale by us of 30,000,000 shares of common stock at an initial public offering price of $3.88 per
share and the receipt of estimated net proceeds of $104,299,964, after deducting estimated underwriting
discounts and commissions and estimated offering costs payable by us, (3) the sale by us of 1,573,000 shares of
common stock at an initial public offering price of $3.53 per share and the receipt of estimated net proceeds of
$5,557,773, after deducting estimated underwriters discounts and commissions and estimated offering costs
payable by us, and (4) the conversion of all of our outstanding shares of preferred stock into 66,782,856 shares of
common stock upon the closing of our initial public offering.

December 31, 2004
Actual Pro Forma

Cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities available-for-sale $ 50,801,328 $160,660,065

Redeemable convertible preferred stock, $0.01 par value; actual—27,667,856
shares authorized, issued and outstanding; pro forma—no shares authorized,
issued and outstanding $ 43,483,076 $ —

Stockholders’ equity:
Convertible preferred stock, $0.01 par value; actual—1,291,150 shares

authorized, issued and outstanding; pro forma—5,000,000 shares authorized;
no shares issued and outstanding 12,912 —

Common stock, $0.001 par value; actual—83,000,000 shares authorized;
500,000 shares issued and outstanding; pro forma—200,000,000 shares
authorized; 98,855,856 shares issued and outstanding 500 98,856

Additional paid-in capital 103,603,132 256,858,501
Deferred employee stock-based compensation (1,194,721) (1,194,721)
Deficit accumulated during the development stage (94,752,701) (94,752,701)

Total stockholders’ equity $ 7,669,122 $161,009,935
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Company
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

MediciNova, Inc.

Date: March 21, 2005 By /s/ Takashi Kiyoizumi

Takashi Kiyoizumi, M.D., Ph.D.
Chief Executive Officer

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes
and appoints Takashi Kiyoizumi his true and lawful attorney-in-fact, with full power of substitution, for him or
her in any and all capacities, to sign any amendments to this report on Form 10-K and to file the same, with
exhibits thereto and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission,
hereby ratifying and confirming all that said attorney-in-fact or his substitute or substitutes may do or cause to be
done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Annual Report on Form 10-K has
been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates
indicated.

Name Title Date

/s/ Takashi Kiyoizumi

Takashi Kiyoizumi, M.D., Ph.D.

Chief Executive Officer, President and
Director (Principal Executive Officer
and Principal Financial and
Accounting Officer)

March 21, 2005

/s/ Yuichi Iwaki

Yuichi Iwaki, M.D., Ph.D.

Director March 21, 2005

/s/ John K.A. Prendergast

John K.A. Prendergast, Ph.D.

Director March 21, 2005

/s/ Daniel Vapnek

Daniel Vapnek, Ph.D.

Director March 21, 2005

/s/ Hideki Nagao

Hideki Nagao

Director March 21, 2005
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Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-8 (No. 333-122665)
pertaining to the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan and 2000 General Stock Incentive Plan of MediciNova, Inc. of our
report dated March 8, 2005, with respect to the financial statements of MediciNova, Inc. included in the Annual
Report (Form 10-K) for the year ended December 31, 2004, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP

San Diego, California
March 17, 2005
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Exhibit 31.1

MEDICINOVA, INC.

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 for the Period Ended December 31, 2004

I, Takashi Kiyoizumi, Chief Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer of MediciNova, Inc., certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Special Financial Report of MediciNova, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
Registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. I am responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the Registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures
to be designed under my supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the Registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to me by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) [omitted pursuant to SEC Release No. 33-8392];

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in
this report my conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of
the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the Registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the Registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case
of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. I have disclosed, based on my most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
Registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the Registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the Registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 21, 2005

By: /s/ Takashi Kiyoizumi

Takashi Kiyoizumi, M.D., Ph.D.
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer and
Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
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Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
AND PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER UNDER 18 U.S.C. § 1350

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Special Financial Report (the “Report”) filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on the date hereof pursuant to Rule 15d-2 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, (the
“Exchange Act”) by MediciNova, Inc. (the “Company”), I, Takashi Kiyoizumi, the Chief Executive Officer and
Principal Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the best of my knowledge:

(i) the Report fully complies with the requirements of section 15(d) of the Exchange Act, and

(ii) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company.

By: /s/ Takashi Kiyoizumi

Takashi Kiyoizumi, M.D., Ph.D.
Principal Executive Officer and Principal
Financial and Accounting Officer

March 21, 2005
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UNITED STATES  
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION  

Washington, D.C. 20549  
  

  

FORM 8-K  
  

  
CURRENT REPORT  

  
Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the  

Securities Exchange Act of 1934  
  

Date of Report (Date of earliest event reported): March 21, 2005  
  

  

MEDICINOVA, INC.  
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)  

  

  

  
4350 La Jolla Village Drive, Suite 950  

San Diego, CA 92122  
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)  

  
Registrant’s telephone number, including area code: (858) 373-1500  

  
Not Applicable  

(Former name or former address, if changed since last report)  
  

  
Check the appropriate box below if the Form 8-K filing is intended to simultaneously satisfy the filing obligation of the registrant 
under any of the following provisions:  
  

  

  

  

  

Delaware  000-51133  33-0927979
(State or other jurisdiction 

of incorporation)  
(Commission File Number)

 
(IRS Employer

Identification No.)

� Written communications pursuant to Rule 425 under the Securities Act (17 CFR 230.425) 

� Soliciting material pursuant to Rule 14a-12 under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.14a-12) 

� Pre-commencement communications pursuant to Rule 14d-2(b) under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.14d-2(b)) 

� Pre-commencement communications pursuant to Rule 13e-4(c) under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.13e-4(c)) 
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Item 2.02. Results of Operations and Financial Condition.  
  

On March 22, 2005 (Japanese Standard Time), MediciNova, Inc. (the “Company”) filed with the Osaka Securities Exchange a 
Japanese report referred to as “Kessan Tanshin,” which contained, among other things, its financial results for the fiscal year ended 
December 31, 2004 (the “Japanese Filing”). A copy of the certified English translation of the Japanese Filing is attached hereto as 
Exhibit 99.1.  
  

The information in this Form 8-K and the attached Exhibit 99.1 is being furnished and shall not be deemed “filed” for the 
purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, or otherwise subject to the liability of that section. The information in 
this Form 8-K shall not be incorporated by reference into any registration statement or filing of the Company, except as shall be 
expressly set forth by specific reference in such a filing.  
  

The Japanese Filing may contain “forward-looking statements” as defined by the Securities and Exchange Commission (the 
“SEC”). All statements, other than statements of historical facts, included in the Japanese Filing that address activities, events or 
developments that the Company expects, believes or anticipates will or may occur in the future are forward-looking statements. These 
statements are based on certain assumptions made by the Company based on management’s experience and perception of historical 
trends, current conditions, expected future developments and other factors it believes are appropriate in the circumstances. Such 
statements are subject to a number of assumptions, risks and uncertainties, many of which are beyond the control of the Company, 
which may cause the Company’s actual results to differ materially from those implied or expressed by the forward-looking 
statements. These forward-looking statements speak only as of the date hereof. In addition, the risk factors contained in the Japanese 
Filing do not contain all of the risk factors set forth in the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (the “Registration 
Statement”) filed by the Company with the SEC. For a discussion of factors that may cause results to differ, please see the Company’s 
SEC reports, including its Special Financial Report for the year ended December 31, 2004 and the Registration Statement.  
  
Item 7.01. Regulation FD Disclosure.  
  

The Company will hold a live Japanese language meeting at Tokyo Shoken Kaikan 9F on Wednesday, March 23, 2005 
(Japanese Standard Time) to discuss the Company’s financial results for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004 and the contents of 
the Japanese Filing. The meeting will be made available by webcast on the Osaka Securities Exchange website promptly following 
the meeting. A link will be posted to the Company’s website to permit access to the webcast.  
  

The information in this Form 8-K and the attached Exhibit 99.1 is being furnished and shall not be deemed “filed” for the 
purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, or otherwise subject to the liability of that section. The information in 
this Form 8-K shall not be incorporated by reference into any registration statement or filing of the Company, except as shall be 
expressly set forth by specific reference in such a filing.  
  
Item 9.01. Financial Statements and Exhibits.  
  

(c) Exhibits.  
  

  
2  

Exhibit 
 

Description 

99.1  Certified English translation of Japanese Filing dated March 22, 2005.
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SIGNATURES  
  

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on 
its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.  
  

  
3  

Dated: March 21, 2005  MEDICINOVA, INC.

 

 

By:
 

/s/ Takashi Kiyoizumi

    Takashi Kiyoizumi, M.D., Ph.D.
    President and Chief Executive Officer
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EXHIBIT INDEX 
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Exhibit No. 
 

Description 

99.1  Certified English translation of Japanese Filing dated March 22, 2005.
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EXHIBIT 99.1 
  
Financial Statements For the Year Ended December 31, 2004  
  

    (URL http://www.medicinova.com)  
Representative Officer: Takashi Kiyoizumi, President & CEO  

Date of Meeting of Board of Directors for Approving Financial Statements: March 22, 2005                                      
Interim Dividend System: N/A  
Date of Annual Meeting of Shareholders: To be decided  
System of trading unit of shares: Adopted (Unit: 1,000 shares)  
  
1. The financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 are prepared in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States (U.S.). Unless otherwise noted, all amounts are expressed in U.S. dollars.  
  
(1) Operating Results  
  

  

(Notes)  

Year ended December 31, 2004: N/A  
Year ended December 31, 2003: N/A  

Year ended December 31, 2004: 500,000 shares  
Year ended December 31, 2003: 500,000 shares  

  
(2) Dividends  
  

  
  

1  

                      March 22, 2005

Name of Listed Company: MEDICINOVA, INC.  Listed Exchanges: Hercules, Osaka Ex.
Code Number: 4875  Location of Head Office: California, U.S.A.

Contact: Joji Suzuki, Vice President, Finance, TEL: (03) 5532-7406

   

Revenues 
  

Operating Loss 
  

Net Loss

 

Year ended December 31, 2004   490,282  (48,612,386) (48,272,603)
Year ended December 31, 2003   —   (6,261,103) (6,209,130)

   

Net Loss 
  

Net 
Loss 

Per Share

  

Ratio of
Net 

Loss to 
Stockholders’

Equity 
  

Ratio of
Operating

Loss to
Total 
Assets

  

Ratio of
Operating

Loss 
to Sales 

 
Year ended December 31, 2004   (48,272,603) (159.23) 788.8% 163.7% 9,915.2%
Year ended December 31, 2003   (6,209,130) (12.42) 218.2% 173.5% —   

(a) Profit (loss) from investment by equity method: 

(b) Weighted average number of outstanding shares of common stock during: 

(c) Changes in accounting method: None 
(d) Percentages shown for revenues, operating loss, and net loss in tables above are percentages of change from the previous year. 

  

Annual Dividend 
Per share 

 Aggregate 
(annual) 

Dividends Paid

  
Pay Out

Ratio 

 

Ratio of 
Dividends 

to 
Stockholders’

Equity 
   

Interim 
Dividend

  

Year-end
Dividend 

      

Year ended December 31, 2004   —    —    —    —    —  
Year ended December 31, 2003  —    —   —    —   —  
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(3) Financial Condition  
  

December 31, 2004: 500,000 shares  
December 31, 2003: 500,000 shares  

December 31, 2004: 0 shares  
December 31, 2003: 0 shares  

  
(4) Cash Flow  
  

  
2. Financial Results Forecast for the six months ending June 30, 2005 and the Year Ending December 31, 2005  
  

  
(Reference) Expected loss per share (for full year): $0.39  

  
Notes to use or disclosure of financial results forecast.  
  

   

Total Assets 
  

Stockholders’ Equity

  

Equity Ratio 
(Ratio of 

equity to total
assets) 

  

Stockholders’
Equity Per 

Share 

         %    

As of December 31, 2004   53,768,595  7,669,122  14.3  15.34
As of December 31, 2003   5,631,309  4,569,882  81.2  9.14

(Notes)
(a) Shares of common stock outstanding as of: 

(b) Repurchased shares as of: 

   

Net Cash Used in
Operating 
Activities 

  

Net Cash Used in
Investing 
Activities 

  

Net Cash Provided by
Financing Activities 

  

Cash and Cash 
Equivalents at the

Year-end 

Year ended December 31, 2004   (13,546,476) (11,071,235) 59,178,340  38,801,328
Year ended December 31, 2003  (5,931,250) (1,065,716) 9,956,547  4,240,699

   

Revenues 

  
Operating 

Loss 
 

 

Net Loss

 

 

Annual Dividend 
Per Share 

       

Interim
Dividend

  

Year-end
Dividend 

Interim Period (6 months)   42,200  (18,600,000) (17,000,000) —    —  
Full Year   750,000  (40,900,000) (37,700,000) —    —  

* Using 95,690,401 for the weighted average number of shares used for expected basic and diluted loss per share. 

The above estimates are based on certain assumptions made by the Company’s management as of the date hereof. These assumptions 
are based on management’s experience and perception of current conditions, trends, expected future developments and other factors 
believed to be appropriate in the circumstances. Such estimate is subject to a number of assumptions, risks and uncertainties, many of 
which are beyond the control of the Company, which may cause the Company’s actual results to differ materially from the above 
estimates. These risks include the risk factors detailed in the Company’s Securities and Exchange Commission filings. Our 
independent auditors have not compiled or been involved in the preparation of the forecasted results for 2005. Accordingly, they 
assume no responsibility for the accuracy or presentation of this information.  
  

2  
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1. Corporate Group 

There is nothing to be noted regarding a corporate group because MEDICINOVA, INC. (hereinafter the “Company,” “we,” 
“our” or “us”) has no affiliated companies.  

  

  
2. Management Policies 

  
2.1. Basic Management Policy 

The Company aims at becoming a global pharmaceutical company specialized in acquiring, developing and selling 
innovative drugs for diseases and conditions with no established effective treatment. In seeking and acquiring license to 
product candidates, the Company follows its basic policy that:  

  

  
 

•  a product candidate should be in the late pre-clinical or early clinical development stage and should have extensive 
safety and efficacy data, and 

  

  

 
•  the product candidate should have a large potential market and have significant potential to improve treatment 

effect. 

2.2. Basic Policy for Profit Sharing 

While there are no plans to do so in the foreseeable future, the Company will pursue maximization of stockholders’ value 
when it distributes profit. However, the Company is still at the early stage of business development. It is our policy for the 
time being to retain earnings to appropriate them for the growth and development of the operations.  

  

  
2.3. Reducing the Investing Unit 

The Company may determine that it has become necessary and important to reduce the investing unit according to the 
future upward movement of the Company’s share price in order to encourage more investment by investors and to increase 
the liquidity of the Company’s shares.  

  

  
2.4. Target Management Indices 

It is expected that the Company will continue to report net loss at least for the next several years. Accordingly, we believe 
that it is inappropriate to use financial indices as business management targets of the Company for the time being. 
Moreover, we believe it is also inappropriate to use non-financial indices such as the development progress of product 
candidates as targets because they are not established as standard indices.  

  

  
2.5. Mid- and Long-Term Business Strategy 

The Company seeks to be a pioneer in developing and selling therapeutic drugs for diseases for which effective treatments 
have not been established. Major strategies include:  

  

  
 •  Dual pathway development approaches 

The Company has acquired rights in various product candidates that are based on proven pharmacology, but have 
features distinct from existing treatments. In developing these product candidates, the Company uses two different 
approaches: strategic core programs and partnering programs. We believe that these approaches enable us to 
diversify our development risks with respect to these product candidates. The intention is to advance development of 
existing and future product candidates without excessive reliance on any single program and thereby to increase the 
likelihood of long-term success. Moreover, we believe that this dual pathway development approach significantly 
enhances our ability to generate near-term revenue opportunities through  

  
3  
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the partnering programs, and long-term sustained revenue opportunities through strategic core programs.  
  

  
 •  Continuous expansion of pipelines for promising product candidates 

The Company continues to identify and acquire licenses for product candidates in the late pre-clinical or early 
clinical development stage. The Company utilizes its industry contacts to identify and acquire product candidates 
with high potential and extensive pre-clinical or early clinical data from Japanese pharmaceutical companies, which 
is one of our  
advantages over other specialty drug companies in the U.S. market. The Company is in active negotiations to 
acquire licenses for additional product candidates, making the best use of this advantage. In pursuing licenses for 
product candidates, the Company conducts extensive examinations not only on the patent rights and therapeutic 
needs addressed, but also on the market opportunities, level of competition and strategic fit with existing programs. 
We believe that risks inherent in drug invention and development will be mitigated by expanding and further 
diversifying of our pipelines of product candidates.  

  

  
 •  Partnership with selected major drug companies to maximize the commercial potential of product candidates 

The Company intends to actively pursue strategic collaborations with major biotechnological or pharmaceutical 
companies to draw on their expertise on development, pharmaceutical regulation and commercialization. The 
Company has made contact with several companies that have shown interest in its partnership program. In the area 
of the strategic core programs, we will continue to seek additional licensors of product candidates, potential co-
marketing partners and potential future licensees outside the U.S. market. Once favorable results are obtained in the 
clinical trial stage for product candidates developed through these efforts, we will endeavor to realize a quick return 
on our investment.  

  

  
 •  Continuous strengthening of the management team 

While developing the existing product candidate portfolio, the Company have also carefully assembled a 
management team of leaders with extensive experience in all aspects of the drug development process from 
acquisition of product candidates through commercialization. The management team will be further strengthened in 
the near future by adding selected leaders who will contribute to the improvement of our core competencies and the 
fastest implementation of our development programs.  

  

  
2.6. Issues To Be Addressed 

The Company must steadily carry out business strategies described in Section 2.5. In pursuing these strategies, the 
following risks may adversely effect the business of the Company:  

  
  
2.6.1. Risks Related to the Business 

  
2.6.1.1. Consecutive net loss is expected for at least several years and the extent of the future loss is unforeseeable. 

We are a specialty pharmaceutical company still in the development stage with a limited operating history. We have 
incurred significant net losses since our inception. For the year ended December 31, 2003, we had a net loss of $6.2 
million. For the year ended December 31, 2004, we had a net loss of $48.3 million, including $34.3 million of non-cash 
stock-based compensation charges related to employee stock options and warrants issued to the founders. We expect 
annual net losses to increase over the next several years as we expand and incur significant clinical development costs. 
These losses have reduced our stockholders’ equity, and, excluding the portion related to non-cash warrant-based 
compensation, will continue to reduce our stockholders’ equity and working capital. Development  

  
4  
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expenses are expected to increase in connection with our planned clinical trials for product candidates and any other 
development projects that we may initiate. In addition, the general and administrative expenses and expenses necessary to 
operate as a public company are also expected to increase. Consequently, it is expected that significant and incremental 
operating losses will be recorded for the foreseeable future.  

  

  

2.6.1.2. At present, the Company has no products that are approved for commercial sale and therefore we do not expect any 
revenues from product sales in the foreseeable future. 

We have not received, and do not expect to receive for at least the next several years, any revenues from the 
commercialization of our product candidates. To date, we have not earned any product revenue and have funded our 
operations primarily from private sales of our securities. The only source of revenues of 2004 was from development 
management services rendered to Asahi Kasei Pharma Corporation and Argenes Inc., both Japanese pharmaceutical 
companies, in connection with their clinical development of pharmaceutical product candidates. In 2003, we earned no 
revenues. The Company anticipates that it will continue to receive modest revenues for rendering consulting services. Prior 
to commercialization of a product candidate, consulting revenues, together with strategic collaboration fees and upfront 
and milestone payments related to out-licensing will be our primary source of revenues. To obtain revenues from sales of 
product candidates, the Company must succeed, either alone or with third parties, in obtaining regulatory approval for the 
development, manufacturing and marketing of drugs with market potential. There is a risk that we may not succeed in these 
activities or may not generate sufficient revenues to support continuing business operations or to achieve profitability.  

  

  
2.6.1.3. The loss of any rights to develop and market any product candidate would significantly impair our operating results. 

The Company has acquired several licenses to develop and sell product candidates. Currently, the Company is a licensee 
for the following six compounds that are incorporated in the development of our seven product candidates.  

  

  
 •  MN-221 for premature labor licensed from Kissei Pharmaceutical; 

  
 •  MN-029 for solid tumors licensed from Angiogene Pharmaceuticals; 

  
 •  MN-001 for interstitial cystisis and asthma licensed from Kyorin Pharmaceutical; 

  
 •  MN-305 for anxiety licensed from Mitsubishi Pharma Corporation; 

  
 •  MN-166 for multiple sclerosis licensed from Kyorin Pharmaceutical; and 

  
 •  MN-246 for urinary incontinence licensed from Mitsubishi Pharma Corporation. 

We are obligated to develop and commercialize these product candidates in accordance with terms and conditions agreed 
with licensors. Fulfillment of some or all of the terms and conditions of the license arrangements is dependent on numerous 
factors, including some factors that are beyond the control of the Company. These license arrangements may be terminated 
if we materially breach our obligations thereunder and fail to correct the breach within a specified period of time. If any of 
the license agreements is terminated, then we would have no further rights to develop and commercialize the licensed 
product candidate. The termination of any license agreement may significantly and adversely affect our business.  

  

  

2.6.1.4. In order to commercialize a therapeutic drug successfully, a product candidate must undergo long, complex and costly 
clinical trials that have high risk of failure or may be delayed or suspended. 

All of our product candidates are in the clinical development stage and require regulatory approval for commercial sale. 
The regulatory approval process is long, complex and costly. It often takes several  

  
5  



 ˆ1GSRC03687K77DZvŠ
1GSRC03687K77DZ

54502 EX99_1 6MEDICINOVA, INC.
FORM 8-K

18-Mar-2005 05:56 EST
HTMSDI

RR Donnelley ProFile TOR kantw0nb 10*
PMT 1C

tordoc1
8.8.12

Page 1 of 1

years to complete the clinical development necessary to commercialize a drug, and delays or failure may occur at any stage 
that may result in failure to generate revenues from marketing and sales of products derived from product candidates. Of 
the large number of drug candidates being developed by pharmaceutical companies only a small percentage result in the 
submission of a new drug application to the Food and Drug Administration (FDA), and even fewer are approved for 
commercialization. Interim results of clinical trials do not necessarily predict final results, and success in pre-clinical 
testing and early clinical trials does not ensure that later clinical trials will be successful. A number of companies in the 
pharmaceutical industry have experienced significant setbacks in advanced clinical trials even after promising results in 
earlier trials. The Company may face the following risks in connection with clinical trials:  

  

  
 •  a product candidate may not prove to be efficacious; 

  
 

•  patients may die or suffer other adverse effects for reasons that may or may not be related to the product candidate 
being tested; 

  
 •  results obtained in the later trial stage may not be consistent with the positive results obtained in earlier trials; and 

  
 •  the trial results may be refused as unacceptable by FDA or other regulatory agencies. 

To date, FDA has accepted Investigational New Drug (IND) applications for three of our seven product candidates. We are 
not allowed to conduct human clinical trials in the United States on other five product candidates until IND applications are 
accepted and there is no assurance that FDA will give approval for these applications. The commencement of clinical trials 
may be delayed for other reasons, including delays in:  

  

  
 •  demonstrating sufficient safety to persuade regulatory authorities to allow a clinical trial to begin; 

  
 •  reaching agreement on acceptable terms with prospective clinical trial institutions and clinical trial sites; 

  
 •  production of a product candidate sufficient in quantity for clinical trials; 

  
 •  obtaining approval for clinical trials from the institutional review board of a prospective clinical trial site; and 

  

 
•  obtaining sufficient patient enrollments (the required number is determined based on many factors, including the 

size of the patient population, the nature of the protocol, the proximity of patients to clinical sites, the availability of 
effective treatments for the relevant disease and the eligibility criteria for the clinical trial). 

Once a clinical trial has begun, it may be delayed, suspended or terminated due to a number of factors, including:  
  

  
 

•  ongoing discussions with regulatory authorities regarding the scope or design of clinical trials or requests by them 
for supplemental information with respect to clinical trial results; 

  
 •  failure to conduct clinical trials in compliance with regulatory requirements; 

  
 •  lower than anticipated retention rates of patients in clinical trials; 

  
 •  serious adverse events or side effects experienced by participants; or 

  
Many of these factors described above may also ultimately lead to refusal of regulatory approval of a present or future 
product candidate. If the Company experiences delays in clinical trials, the commercial prospects for product candidates 
will be harmed and product revenues will be delayed.  

  
6  

 
•  failure to provide the product candidate in sufficient quantity necessary for clinical trials, or lack of raw materials 

necessary for producing the product candidate, or defect in their quality. 
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2.6.1.5. Failure to identify and license or acquire additional product candidates will hamper expansion of business. 

Since the Company’s capacity and resources to develop new drugs are limited, its business is substantially dependent on 
acquisition of product candidates in the clinical trial stage or acquisition of license for them, which will be further 
developed into commercial products. The success of this strategy depends upon our ability to identify, select and acquire 
right product candidates. We have limited experience in identifying, negotiating and implementing acquisition of 
economically viable product candidates or acquisition of licenses for them, which is a lengthy and complex process. In 
addition, the market for acquiring product candidates or license for them is intensely competitive and many of our 
competitors have greater resources than the Company. We may not have capital resources necessary to consummate 
acquisitions of product candidates or licenses identified to fit the Company’s strategy. Moreover, product candidate 
acquisitions involve numerous risks, including:  

  

  
 •  difficulties in integrating the development program for the acquired product candidates into the existing operations; 

  
 •  diversion of financial and management resources from existing operations; 

  
 •  risks of entering new markets or new technology area; 

  
 •  failure to generate sufficient revenues to offset acquisition costs; and 

  
 •  delay that may result from implementation of unanticipated pre-clinical trials or other tests on the product candidate. 

If the Company fails to identify and acquire additional product candidates or licenses for them, the Company will not be 
able to expand revenues from sales of new products.  

  

  

2.6.1.6. Failure to raise funds necessary for operations would prevent the Company from developing and commercializing product 
candidates.

The Company has consumed substantial amounts of capital since its inception. From our inception (September 26, 2000) to 
December 31, 2004, we used $28.4 million in cash to fund our operating activities and fund net acquisitions of property 
and equipment. Although we believe the existing cash resources will be sufficient to fund our anticipated cash 
requirements through 2006, we will need significant additional financing in the future to fund our operations. The 
Company’s future capital requirements depend on, and may increase significantly as a result of, many factors, including:  

  
  
 • progress in, and the costs of, our clinical trials; 

  
 • costs of securing manufacturing arrangements for clinical trials or commercial production; 

  
 

• costs involved in filing, prosecuting, enforcing and defending patent claims and other intellectual property rights; 
and 

  
 

• costs of establishing or contracting for sales and marketing functions once regulatory approval is obtained for 
marketing of our product candidates. 

Until significant recurring revenues are generated, the Company will satisfy future cash needs through strategic 
collaborations, private or public sales of its securities, debt financings or by licensing all or a portion of its product 
candidates. We do not have definite assurance that additional capital sources will be available on acceptable terms. We 
may not be able to procure necessary funds at all. If the Company fails to procure necessary funds, it may lose business 
opportunities that require financial commitments, and the Company may be forced to:  

  
  
 • terminate or delay clinical trials for one or more of product candidates; 

  
7  

 • delay development of sales and marketing structures; 
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 • curtail efforts to acquire new product candidates; or 

  

  

 • relinquish rights to the Company’s technologies or product candidates. 

2.6.1.7. The Company may have to depend on strategic collaborations with independent parties for development and 
commercialization of selected product candidates and may not have control over a number of key elements relating to the 
development and commercialization of these product candidates.

One of the key aspects of our strategy is to enter into collaborations with independent partners whereby we grant licenses 
for selected product candidates to larger pharmaceutical companies willing to conduct later-stage clinical trials and further 
develop and commercialize those products. To date, we have not entered into any collaborative arrangements with any 
independent partners and currently do not intend to do so until we have successfully completed Phase II clinical trial for 
one of our product candidates in the partnership program.  

  
By entering into strategic collaborations, the Company may rely on partner companies for financial resources and for 
development, commercialization and pharmaceutical regulatory expertise.  
Partners of the Company may fail to develop or effectively commercialize products by using product candidates of the 
Company:  

  

  
 

• if they do not have sufficient resources or decide not to devote necessary resources due to internal constraints such 
as limited cash or human resources; 

  
 

• if they decide to develop, independent from partnership agreement with us, a potential product that would compete 
with our product candidate; or 

  
 • if they fail to obtain necessary regulatory approvals. 

The Company may not be able to enter into partnership agreements or, may have to accept agreements on unfavorable 
terms. The competition for locating partners is also very tense.  

  

  

2.6.1.8. Reliance on independent parties for clinical trials, data collection and analysis has a risk of costs or delay that may 
hamper successful development and commercialization of product candidates. 

Although the Company designs and manages its current clinical trials, it does not have the ability to conduct clinical trials 
for product candidates on its own. The Company will rely on independent research organizations, medical institutions, 
clinical investigators, and laboratories to conduct clinical trials, data collection and analysis on behalf of the Company. In 
the course of clinical development, we have contracted and will continue to contract with a number of research 
organizations, including, without limitation, MDS Pharma Services of Belfast, Northern Ireland; Pharmaceutical Research 
Associates, Inc. of Lenexa, Kansas; Fulcrum Pharma Developments, Inc. of Durham, North Carolina; and Quintiles, Inc. of 
Morrisville, North Carolina.  

  
Clinical trials by any of these independent organizations may be delayed, suspended or terminated: 

  

  
 

• if the independent organization fails to carry out its contractual duties or regulatory obligations or meet expected 
deadlines; 

  
 • if the independent organization needs to be replaced; or 

  
 

• if the quality or accuracy of the data obtained by the independent organization is not reliable due to its failure to 
adhere to the clinical protocols designated by the Company or regulatory requirements or for other reasons. 

Failure by third parties to perform their obligations under contract with the Company may result in increased development 
costs for the Company, delay in regulatory approval, or cancellation of our  

  
8  
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commercializing plans for product candidates. While we believe that there are numerous alternative sources to provide 
these services, in the event that we seek such alternative sources, we may not be able to enter into replacement 
arrangements without delays or additional expenditures.  

  

  

2.6.1.9. Product candidates of the Company may not gain acceptance among physicians, patients and the medical community, 
which would limit potential to generate revenues. 

Even if our product candidates are approved for commercial sale by FDA or other regulatory authorities, market 
acceptance of any approved product candidate by physicians, healthcare professionals and third-party payors, profitability 
and growth will depend on a number of factors, including:  

  
  
 • relative convenience and ease of administration; 

  
 • the prevalence and severity of any adverse side effects; 

  
 • availability of alternative treatments; 

  
 • pricing and cost effectiveness, which may be subject to regulatory control; 

  
 • effectiveness of our or our partners’ sales and marketing strategy; and 

  
 • our ability to obtain sufficient third-party insurance coverage or reimbursement. 

If any product candidate developed by the Company does not provide a treatment that is as beneficial as the current 
standard treatment or otherwise does not provide patient benefit, that product is unlikely to be accepted by the market.  

  

  

2.6.1.10. The Company is dependent on the management team, particularly Takashi Kiyoizumi, M.D., Ph.D., a founder and chief 
executive officer, and Yuichi Iwaki, M.D., Ph.D., a founder and chairman of the board of directors. If we are unable to 
attract, retain and motivate these and other key management and scientific staff, our drug development programs may be 
delayed and we may be unable to successfully develop or commercialize our product candidates. 

The Company is dependent on the continued services of our executive officers and other key personnel, particularly 
Takashi Kiyoizumi, M.D., Ph.D., one of the founders and chief executive officer, and Yuichi Iwaki, M.D., Ph.D, one of the 
founders and the chairman of the board of directors. They have played an indispensable role in acquiring licenses for 
product candidates from Japanese drug companies and in securing financing from Japanese institutions. Because the 
Company has greatly relied and will rely on personal connections of these key executive managers in building relationships 
with licensors of product candidates or with prospective licensees for product candidates in our partnership program, the 
Company is particularly dependent upon continued employment of these executive managers with us. We are also 
substantially dependent on the continued services of our existing project managers because of the highly technical nature of 
our product development programs.  

  
If new product candidates or licenses for new product candidates are acquired, the Company’s success will depend on its 
ability to attract, retain and motivate highly qualified managers and scientists to manage the development of these product 
candidates. In particular, our drug development programs require employment and retention of experienced personnel 
having expertise in pharmaceutical development and regulatory affairs. In addition, we will need to hire additional 
personnel as we continue to expand our clinical development and other development activities. The Company has to 
compete with numerous companies and academic and other research institutions in recruiting experienced scientists and 
other technical and professional personnel. Competition for qualified workers is particularly intense in San Diego, 
California. Uncertainties, such as our short operating history, limited capital resource and the characteristic being a 
specialty pharmaceutical company still in the business development stage, may obstruct employment and retention of 
necessary workers, which may significantly impede the achievement of our development and commercialization goals.  
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Although we have employment agreements with key members of the management team, each of our employees, subject to 
applicable notice requirements, may terminate his or her employment at any time. We do not carry “key person” insurance 
covering members of senior management. If we lose any of our key management personnel, we may not be able to find 
suitable replacement and our business may be harmed as a result.  

  

  

2.6.1.11. Failure to establish sales and distribution system may hamper successful commercialization of the Company’s core 
product candidates.

To date, the Company has not sold, marketed or distributed any pharmaceutical products. If the Company succeeds in 
developing and obtaining regulatory approvals for product candidates in its strategic core programs, the Company needs to 
establish sales, marketing and distribution systems. Developing an effective sales system and marketing force requires a 
significant amount of financial resources and time. We may fail to establish and manage a sales system, or fail to do so in a 
timely and cost-effective manner. The sales system we establish may not be capable of generating demand for our 
products. Although we intend to establish strategic collaboration with agents to market product candidates in our strategic 
core programs outside the United States, if we are unable to establish such collaborations, we may be required to directly 
market our strategic core product candidates outside the United States. In that event, we may need to build international 
sales and marketing systems having technical expertise and supporting distribution capability.  

  

  

2.6.1.12. Loss of service from independent scientific and clinical advisors may impair the progress of clinical trials and research 
and development efforts. 

The Company works with scientific and clinical advisors at academic and other institutions who are experts in the fields 
related to each of our drug development projects. They advise us on our clinical trials. These advisors are not our 
employees and may have other commitments that would limit their future availability to us. Although these scientific and 
clinical advisors generally agree not to engage in competing work, if a conflict of interest arises between their work for the 
Company and their work for another entity, we may lose their services, which may impair our reputation in the industry 
and delay the clinical development of our product candidates. These advisors do not have any rights to publish data or 
information obtained in connection with their work for us without our consent and are obligated to keep confidential our 
proprietary information.  

  

  

2.6.1.13. The Company will need to increase the size of its organization. In expanding the business size, the Company may 
encounter difficulties that adversely affect the results of operations. 

The Company will need to expand and effectively manage its operations and facilities in order to promote drug 
development programs, achieve milestones under collaboration agreements, facilitate additional collaborations and pursue 
other development activities. For example, we intend to hire additional personnel in clinical development, pharmaceutical 
regulatory affairs and business development to further strengthen our core competencies. We also plan to hire additional 
managerial and administrative personnel to manage our business and daily operations as we continue to grow. In addition, 
we have to develop and strengthen sales, marketing and distribution systems for product candidates in our strategic core 
programs. The scope and timing of employment of these personnel is highly uncertain and remains subject to the success 
of our current product candidate development programs.  

  
To manage the business growth, the Company needs to continue to improve its operational, financial and management 
controls, reporting systems and procedures and to attract and retain sufficient numbers of talented employees. Fulfillment 
of our public reporting obligations and other regulatory requirements in the United States and Japan places additional 
demands on our limited resources. We  
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may fail in the expansion of our operations and, accordingly, may not achieve our development and commercialization 
goals.  

  

  

2.6.1.14. Reliance on independent manufacturers may result in risk of delay in our clinical trials and market introduction of 
products, as well as increased costs. 

The Company has no manufacturing facilities of its own, and does do not intend to develop such facilities for product 
candidates for clinical trials or for the commercial purpose in the foreseeable future. We have entered into contracts with 
independent manufacturers for the production of, in collaboration with us, our product candidates for clinical trials. If any 
of these contracts are terminated, or any of these manufacturers fails to manufacture product candidates, we believe that 
there are other competitive manufacturers available. However, we may not be able to enter into arrangements without 
delays or additional expenditures. We cannot estimate such delay or costs with certainty. To date, these manufacturers have 
met the requirements of our programs.  

  
Our manufacturers are required to operate in accordance with FDA-mandated current good manufacturing practices 
(GMPs). Failure by any of our contract manufacturers to establish and follow current GMPs and to document their 
adherence to such practices may lead to significant delay in clinical trials or in obtaining regulatory approval for product 
candidates or the ultimate launch of our products into the market. In addition, changing manufacturers is difficult. For 
example, a new manufacturer must be validated regarding the compliance of its manufacturing processes and procedures 
with current GMPs, which may be costly and time-consuming. Failure by a contract manufacturer or by the Company to 
comply with applicable regulations could result in sanctions being imposed on the Company, including fines, injunctions, 
civil penalties, refusal, delay, suspension or revocation by the government of pre-market approval of drugs, seizures or 
recalls of products, operating restrictions and criminal prosecutions.  

  

  
2.6.2. Risks related to our intellectual property 

  
2.6.2.1. Our ability to compete may decline if we do not adequately protect our proprietary rights.

To date, we have obtained licensed rights under ten issued U.S. patents and two U.S. patent applications. We also have 
obtained licensed rights to 64 issued and pending non-U.S. patents corresponding to these U.S. patents. In addition to these 
licensed rights, we hold three U.S. patent applications relating to MN-001 and its metabolite, MN-002.  

  
Patent protection of our product candidates and technology involves complex legal and factual questions. In general, our 
license agreements give us the right, but not the obligation, to enforce our patent rights. We cannot be certain that any of 
the patents or patent applications owned by us or our licensors related to our product candidates and technology will 
provide adequate protection from competing products. Our success will depend, in part, on whether we or our licensors 
can:  

  
  
 • obtain and maintain patents to protect our product candidates; 

  
 

• obtain and maintain any required or desirable licenses to use certain third-party technologies that may be protected 
by patents; 

  
 • protect our trade secrets and know-how; 

  
 • operate without infringing the intellecutal property or proprietary rights of others; 

  
 • enforce the issued patents under which we hold rights; and 
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The degree to which we will be able to protect our proprietary rights in future is uncertain. For example:  
  
  
 • we might not have been the first to make the inventions covered by each of our pending patent applications; 

  
 • we might not have been the first to file patent applications for these inventions; 

  
 • others may independently develop similar or alternative technologies or duplicate any of our technologies; 

  
 • it is possible that none of our pending patent applications will result in issued patents; 

  

 
• any patents under which we hold rights may not provide us with a basis for commercially viable products, may not 

provide us with any competitive advantages or may be challenged by third parties as not infringed, invalid, or 
unenforceable under the laws of the U.S. or other countries; 

  
 

• any of the issued patents under which we hold rights may not be valid or enforceable or may be circumvented 
successfully; or 

  
 • we may not develop additional proprietary technologies that are patentable. 

Proprietary trade secrets and unpatented know-how may also prove to be very important to our future research and 
development activities. However, we cannot be certain that others will not develop the same or similar technologies on 
their own. We have taken steps – including entering into confidentiality agreements with all of our employees, consultants, 
outside scientific collaborators, sponsored researchers and other advisors – to protect our trade secrets and unpatented 
know-how and keep them secret. We also typically obtain agreements from these parties stipulating that inventions 
conceived by the party in the course of rendering services to us will be our exclusive property. However, these agreements 
may not be honored and may not effectively assign intellectual property rights to us. Enforcing a claim that a party illegally 
obtained and is using our trade secrets is difficult, expensive and time consuming, and the outcome is unpredictable. In 
addition, courts outside the United States may be less willing to protect trade secrets.  

  

  

2.6.2.2. A dispute concerning the infringement or misappropriation of our proprietary rights or the proprietary rights of others 
could be time consuming and costly, and an unfavorable outcome could harm our business. 

There is significant litigation in our industry regarding patent and other intellectual property rights. While we are not 
currently subject to any pending litigation, we may be exposed to future litigation by third parties based on claims that our 
product candidates, technologies or activities infringe the intellectual property rights of others. There are many patents 
relating to chemical compounds and the uses thereof. If our compounds are found to infringe any such patents, we may 
have to pay significant damages. A patentee could prevent us from importing, making, using or selling the patented 
compounds. We may need to resort to litigation to enforce the patents granted to our company, to protect our trade secrets, 
and to determine the scope and validity of third-party proprietary rights. Similarly, we may be subject to claims that we 
have inappropriately used or disclosed trade secrets or other proprietary information of third parties. When necessary, our 
company may hire persons with scientific expertise employed at other companies engaged in one or more areas of activity 
similar to those in which we are involved. Again, we may be subject to claims that we have inappropriately used the trade 
secrets or other proprietary information of third parties. Becoming involved in litigation could consume a substantial 
portion of our managerial and financial resources, regardless of whether we win or lose. We may not be able to afford the 
costs of litigation. Any legal action against us or our partners could lead to:  
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• injunctions or other equitable relief that may effectively block our ability to further develop, commercialize and sell 
our products; 

  
 

• we or our partners not being able to enter into license arrangements on commercially acceptable terms or indeed not 
being able to enter into license arrangements at all; and 

  
 • significant cost and expenses, as well as distraction of our management from our business operations. 

As a result, we could be prevented from commercializing current or future products.  
  

  
2.6.3. Risks Related to Our Industry 

  

2.6.3.1 We are subject to stringent regulation of the sales of our product candidates, which could delay the development and 
commercialization of our products. 

We, our collaborators, and our product candidates are subject to stringent regulation by the FDA and other regulatory 
agencies in the United States and by comparable authorities in other countries. Our product candidates cannot be marketed 
in the United States until the FDA has approved the product candidates. It is possible that we may never receive FDA 
approval for any of our product candidates. Obtaining FDA approval typically takes many years and requires substantial 
managerial resources. Even if regulatory approval is obtained, the FDA may impose significant restrictions on the 
indicated uses, conditions for use and labeling of such products, and may require post-approval testing, including 
additional research and development and clinical trials. These regulatory requirements may limit the size of the market for 
the product or result in the incurrence of additional costs. Any delay or failure in obtaining required approvals could have a 
material adverse effect on our ability to generate revenues from the particular product candidate. In addition, both before 
and after regulatory approval, we, our collaborators, and our product candidates are subject to numerous FDA requirements 
covering, among other things, testing, manufacturing, quality control, labeling, advertising, promotion, distribution, and 
export. The FDA’s requirements may change and additional government regulations may be promulgated that could affect 
us, our collaborators, and our product candidates. We cannot predict the likelihood, nature or extent of government 
regulation that may arise from future legislation or administrative action, either in the United States or elsewhere. In order 
to market our products outside of the United States, we and our strategic collaborators and licensees must satisfy and 
comply with numerous and varying regulatory requirements in other countries regarding safety and efficacy. Approval 
procedures vary among countries and can involve additional product testing and additional administrative review periods. 
The time required to obtain approval in other countries might differ from that required to obtain FDA approval. The 
regulatory approval processes in other countries may include all of the risks detailed above regarding FDA approval in the 
United States. Regulatory approval of a pharmaceutical product in one country does not ensure regulatory approval in 
another, but a failure or delay in obtaining regulatory approval of that pharmaceutical product in one country may 
negatively impact the regulatory processes in others. Failure or delay in obtaining, or withdrawal of applications for, 
regulatory approval of a pharmaceutical product in countries other than the US could therefore negatively impact the 
regulatory processes as described above with regard to approval from the FDA in the US. There is also the risk that the 
product candidate may not be approved for all the indicated disorders listed in our application, which would limit the uses 
of our product and adversely impact our potential royalties and product sales. Such conditional approval could limit the 
indicated uses of the products to be sold and/or require expensive post-marketing surveillance studies. If we fail to comply 
with the regulatory requirements for pharmaceutical products in the United States and other countries, among other things, 
we may be subject to fines and other civil penalties, delays in receiving or failure to receive approval for a product, 
suspension of operations or withdrawal of regulatory approval, product recalls, seizure of products, operating restrictions, 
interruption of manufacturing or clinical trials, injunctions and criminal prosecution.  
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2.6.3.2 If our competitors develop and market products that are more effective than our product candidates, they may reduce or 
eliminate our commercial opportunities.

Competition in the pharmaceutical industry is intense and is expected to increase. We face competition from 
pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies, as well as numerous academic and research institutions and governmental 
agencies, in both the United States and other countries. Some of these competitors have products or are pursuing the 
development of products that target the same diseases and conditions that are the focus of our own drug development 
programs. Our competitors could have products that are in advanced development and may succeed in developing drugs 
that are more effective, safer and more affordable or more easily administered than ours, or that achieve patent protection 
or commercialization sooner than our products. Our competitors may also develop alternative therapies that could further 
limit the market for any drugs that we may develop. In many of our target disease areas, potential competitors are working 
to develop new compounds with different mechanisms, biological responses, and side effects. Many of our competitors 
have substantially greater capital and research and development resources, manufacturing, sales and marketing capabilities 
and production facilities than we do. Smaller companies also may prove to be significant competitors, particularly through 
proprietary research discoveries and collaboration arrangements with established pharmaceutical companies.  

  

  
2.6.3.3 Rapid technological change could make our products obsolete. 

Biopharmaceutical technologies have undergone rapid and significant change and we expect that they will continue to do 
so. As a result, there is significant risk that our current product candidates may be rendered obsolete or uneconomical by 
new discoveries before we recover any expenses incurred in connection with their development. If our product candidates 
are rendered obsolete by advancements in biopharmaceutical technologies, our future prospects will suffer.  

  

  

2.6.3.4 Consumers may sue us for product liability, which could result in substantial liabilities that exceed our available resources 
and damage our reputation. 

Developing and commercializing drug products entails significant product liability risks. Liability claims may arise from 
our and our collaborators’ use of products in clinical trials and the commercial sale of those products. Consumers may 
make product liability claims directly against us and/or our collaborators, and our collaborators or third parties selling these 
products may seek contribution from us if they incur any losses or expenses related to such claims. We currently have 
product liability insurance that covers our clinical trials. We believe our current insurance coverage is reasonably adequate 
at this time. We will, however, need to increase and expand this coverage as we commence additional clinical trials, as 
well as larger scale trials, and if our product candidates are approved for commercial sale. This insurance may be 
prohibitively expensive or may not fully cover our potential liabilities. Inability to obtain sufficient insurance coverage at 
an acceptable cost or otherwise to protect against potential product liability claims could prevent or inhibit the 
commercialization of products that we or one of our collaborators develop. Product liability claims could have a material 
adverse effect on our operations and business results. Liability from such claims could exceed our total assets if we do not 
prevail in any lawsuit brought by a third party alleging that an injury was caused by one or more of our drug products.  

  

  
2.6.3.5 Health care reform measures could adversely affect our business. 

The business and financial condition of pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies are affected by the efforts of 
governmental and third-party payors to contain or reduce the costs of health care. In the United States and in other 
jurisdictions there have been, and we expect that there will continue to be, a number of legislative and regulatory proposals 
aimed at changing health care systems. For example, the  
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pricing of prescription drugs is subject to government control in some countries other than the United States, and we expect 
proposals to implement similar controls in the United States to continue. Another example of proposed reform that could 
affect our business is the current discussion of drug reimportation into the United States. In 2000, Congress directed the 
FDA to adopt regulations allowing the reimportation of approved drugs originally manufactured in the United States back 
into the United States from other countries where the drugs are being sold at lower prices. Although the Secretary of Health 
and Human Services has refused to implement this directive, the House of Representatives passed a similar bill in July 
2003 that does not require action by the Secretary of Health and Human Services. The reimportation bills have not yet 
resulted in any new laws or regulations; however, these and other initiatives could decrease the price we or our 
collaborators receive for our product candidates once they are approved for sale, adversely affecting our future revenue 
growth and potential profitability. Moreover, the pendency or approval of such proposals could result in a decrease in our 
stock price or our ability to raise capital or to obtain strategic collaborations or licenses.  

  

  
2.7 Fundamental policy on corporate governance and implementation of relevant measures

  
2.7.1 Basic Policy for Corporate Governance

In order to enhance enterprise value continuously, the company recognizes the significance to ensure the transparency of 
management and to strengthen the control of management. To this end, the company strives to improve corporate 
governance system.  

  
  
2.7.2 The implementation of corporate governance 

  

  

2.7.2.1 Corporate Organization 

    Board of Directors 

The board of directors of the Company currently consists of five directors. All directors were elected to hold office until 
their successors are elected and qualified or until their death, resignation, disqualification or removal, whichever earlier. 
Effective upon the date of this document, the office terms of directors are divided into three classes:  

  
  
 • Class I: the term will expire at the annual meeting of stockholders to be held in 2005; 

  
 • Class II: the term will expire at the annul meeting of stockholders to be held in 2006; and 

  
 • Class III: the term will expire at the annual meeting of stockholders to be held in 2007. 

As of the date hereof, Class I consists of Messrs. Kiyoizumi and Nagao, Class II consist of Drs. Vapnek and Iwaki and 
Class III consists of Dr. Prendergast. Messrs. Prendergast, Vapnek and Nagao are independent directors as defined by Rule 
4200(a)(15) of the National Association of Securities Dealers Marketplace Rules of the United States. At each annual 
meeting of stockholders after the initial classification, the successors to directors whose terms then expire will serve from 
the time of election and qualification until the third annual meeting following the election and until their successors are 
duly elected and qualified. The authorized number of directors may be changed by resolution of the board. Any additional 
directorships resulting from an increase in the number of directors will be distributed among the three classes so that, as 
nearly as possible, each class will consist of one-third of all directors. Vacancies on the board may be filled by resolution 
of the board of directors. We believe this classification of directorship is effective for delaying or preventing changes in 
control or management of the Company.  
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  Board Committees 

The board of directors has an audit committee, a compensation committee and a nominating and corporate governance 
committee, each of which has the composition and responsibilities described below. As of the date of this document, all of 
committee members are independent directors under the rules of SEC and the Nasdaq Stock Market. Although the 
Company is not currently subject to the rules of the U.S. Nasdaq Stock Market, the Company intends to comply with 
Nasdaq’s rules regarding board independence and corporate governance while it is listed on the Hercules market of the 
Osaka Securities Exchange.  

  
Audit Committee. As of the date of this document, the audit committee consists of Messrs. Prendergast, Vapnek and Nagao, 
with Dr. Prendergast serving as the chair of the committee. The audit committee provides assistance to the board of 
directors in fulfilling its legal and fiduciary obligations in matters involving accounting, auditing, financial reporting, 
internal control and legal compliance functions. The audit committee approves the services performed by independent 
accountants and reviews their reports regarding the Company’s accounting practices and internal accounting controls. The 
audit committee is responsible for the appointment, compensation, retention and oversight of independent accountants 
hired by the Company and ensures that the accountants are independent of the management team. Pursuant to applicable 
SEC rules, the Company is required to disclose whether it has an “audit committee financial expert” serving on the audit 
committee. Each member of the audit committee has been selected by the board of directors based on its determination that 
the member is fully qualified to monitor the performance of the management team, the public disclosure of the Company’s 
financial condition and operational results, internal controls over financial reporting and the performance of independent 
auditors, as well as to analyze and evaluate financial statements. However, the board of directors believes that none of the 
audit committee members meets all of the criteria specified in the SEC rules to qualify as an “audit committee financial 
expert.” The financial statements of the Company are not very complex and the Company has not earned significant 
revenues because it is still in the early stage of business development. Considering the current situation of the Company, 
the board of directors determined that it is appropriate for the audit committee not to have an “audit committee financial 
expert.” The board of directors determined that the financial sophistication of the current audit committee members, as 
evidenced by their previous and current financial and business experience, is sufficient for the audit committee to ensure 
the integrity of financial statements and to fully and completely fulfill its role under the audit committee charter. In 
addition, the audit committee is authorized to retain, at the expense of the Company, special legal, accounting or other 
advisors or consultants whenever it deems necessary or appropriate.  

  
Compensation Committee As of the date of this document, the compensation committee consists of Messrs. Prendergast, 
Vapnek and Nagao, each of whom is a non-management member of the board of directors, with Dr. Prendergast serving as 
the chair of the committee. The compensation committee determines general compensation policy and compensation 
provided to the directors and officers of the Company. The compensation committee also reviews and determines bonuses 
for officers and other employees. In addition, the compensation committee reviews and determines equity based 
compensation programs for directors, officers, employees and consultants and administers stock option plans and employee 
stock purchase plan of the Company.  

  
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee. As of the date of this document, the nominating and corporate 
governance committee consists of Messrs. Prendergast, Vapnek and Nagao, with Dr. Prendergast serving as the chair of the 
committee. The nominating and corporate governance committee is responsible for making recommendations to the board 
of directors regarding candidates for directorships and the size and composition of the board and for overseeing corporate 
governance guidelines, and reporting and making recommendations to the board concerning corporate governance matters.  
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2.7.2.2 The system for internal control and risk management 

During fiscal year 2005, the company will review and improve the corporate system for internal control and risk 
management to comply with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.  

  

  
2.7.2.3 Directors’ compensation 

The Company intends to pay to non-employee board members, the following compensations related to their service on the 
board, provided that they should have attended at least 80% of the board meetings and applicable committee meetings:  

  
  
 • an initial compensation of $20,000 for accepting the office of director; and 

  
 • an annual compensation of $20,000. 

In the event that a board member attends less than 80% of such meetings, the board member will receive 25% of the cash 
compensation he or she would otherwise receive. In addition, non-employee and non-consultant directors, other than Mr. 
Nagao, will receive nondiscretionary, automatic grants of non-qualified stock options. A non-employee director is granted 
automatically an initial option to purchase 10,000 shares upon first becoming a member of the board of directors. The 
initial option is fully vested at the time of grant. Immediately after the annual general meeting of stockholders each year, 
each non-employee director, other than Mr. Nagao, will be granted automatically a non-qualified option to purchase 10,000 
common shares of the Company, provided the director has served on the board for at least six months. Each annual option 
will vest and become fully exercisable six months after the date of the grant. Options granted to non-employee directors 
will have a per share exercise price equal to 100% of the fair market value of the underlying shares on the date of grant and 
will become fully vested immediately if the control over the Company has changed. The Company reimburses directors for 
reasonable expenses incurred by them for attending board and committee meetings.  

  

  
2.7.2.3.1 No Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation 

None of the compensation committee members at any time has served or is serving as an officer or employee of the 
Company. No interlocking relationship exists, or has existed in the past, between the board or compensation committee of 
the Company and the board or compensation committee of any other company.  

  

  
2.7.2.3.2 Executive Compensation 

The table below shows the aggregate amount of all compensation, bonuses and salaries earned by executive officers 
whose salary and bonus exceeded $100,000 for services rendered in all capacities to the Company during 2004. 
Compensation shown in this table does not include medical, group life insurance or other benefits which are generally 
available to all salaried employees of the Company.  

  
Summary Compensation Table  
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Aggregated Annual Compensation 
  

Long-term 
Incentive 

Compensation

   

Salary

  

Bonus 
  

Other 
Compensation

  

Stock 
Options 

(number of 
shares) 

2004   1,157,565  434,400  41,752  730,000
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2.7.2.3.3 Stock Options 

  
2.7.2.3.4.1 Aggregate Option Exercises in 2004

No options were exercised during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004. 
  

  
2.7.2.3.4.2 Options Granted in 2004 

The following table shows a summary of options to purchase the Company’s common shares granted to the executive 
officers and non-employee directors during 2004. The exercise price per share of each option was determined by the 
board of directors at fair market value on the date of the grant.  

  

  

Name 
  

2004 Option Grants

Executive Officers(1)    

Brian Anderson   200,000
Richard E. Gammans, Ph.D.   160,000
Kenneth W. Locke, Ph.D.   120,000
Mark Lotz   120,000
Joji Suzuki, M.D., Ph.D.   130,000
   

Non-Employee Directors(2)    

John K. A. Prendergast, Ph.D.   10,000
Daniel Vapnek, Ph.D.   10,000

(1) 25% of all options granted to executive officers will vest on the first anniversary from the grant date, and the remaining 75% 
vests equally every month over a period of three years commencing on the first anniversary of the grant date. 

  

  

(2) All options granted to non-employee directors are fully vested upon grant. 

2.7.2.3.4.3 Stock Plans 

2000 General Stock Incentive Plan  
  
In September 2000, we adopted our 2000 General Stock Incentive Plan. The plan is administered by our board of directors although 
the board may delegate the authority to administer the plan to a committee of directors or one or more officers, provided, however, 
that committee functions may not be delegated to officers to the extent that option grants relate to persons who are subject to the 
reporting requirements of Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended and including subsequent amendments, 
(hereafter referred to as the Exchange Act). A total of 2,000,000 shares of common stock are authorized for issuance under the 2000 
General Stock Incentive Plan.  
  
Shares subject to stock options that have expired, been cancelled or have otherwise terminated without having been exercised in full 
will again become available for grant. The 2000 General Stock Incentive Plan permits the grant of options to our directors, officers, 
other employees and consultants. Options may be either incentive stock options to employees within the meaning of Section 422 of 
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended or nonstatutory stock options. The maximum term of options granted under the plan 
is ten years. Except in specified circumstances, no person may be granted more than 600,000 shares of common stock in 12-month 
period. Options granted under the 2000 General Stock Incentive Plan are generally nontransferable and vest at the rate determined by 
the administrator of the plan. Options granted under the 2000 General Stock Option Plan vest based on periods determined by our 
board of directors which has been four years for employees and other option recipients.  
  
The 2000 General Stock Incentive Plan provides that in the event of a recapitalization, stock split or similar transaction, we will make 
appropriate adjustments in order to preserve the benefits of options outstanding under  
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the plan. If we are involved in a merger, consolidation or other reorganization, outstanding options granted under the 2000 General 
Stock Incentive Plan will be subject to the agreement of merger or reorganization.  
  
As of December 31, 2004, options to purchase a total of 1,550,000 shares of common stock were outstanding under the 2000 General 
Stock Incentive Plan at a weighted average exercise price of $1.00 per share. No additional options will be issued under the 2000 
General Stock Incentive Plan and future use of this plan has been terminated effective as of the consummation of the Company’s 
recent public offering.  
  
2004 Stock Incentive Plan  
  

General. The 2004 Stock Incentive Plan is intended to serve as the successor program to our 2000 General Stock Incentive Plan. 
The 2004 Stock Incentive Plan was adopted by our board of directors in November 2004 and approved by out stockholders on 
December 21, 2004, and became effective upon the completion of the Company’s initial public offering.  
  

Administration. The 2004 Stock Incentive Plan will be administered by our compensation committee. Our board of directors 
may also appoint one or more separate committees to administer the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan with respect to employees who are not 
considered officers or directors under Section 16 of the Exchange Act. The 2004 Stock Incentive Plan provides for the grant of (i) 
options to purchase shares of common stock, (ii) restricted stock, (iii) stock appreciation rights and (iv) stock units. Incentive stock 
options may only be granted to new employees. Nonstatutory stock options and other stock-based awards may be granted to 
employees, non-employee directors, advisors and consultants.  
  
The board of directors will be able to amend or modify the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan at any time, with stockholder approval, if 
required.  
  

Authorized Shares. 20,300,000 shares of common stock have been authorized for issuance under the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan. 
However, no participant in the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan can receive option grants or stock appreciation rights for more than 
2,030,000 shares total in any calendar year. The number of shares reserved for issuance under the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan will be 
increased on the first day of each of our fiscal years from 2006 through 2014, with the first such increase occurring on January 1, 
2006, by the lesser of:  
  

  
•  1,000,000 shares, 

  
•  3% of our outstanding common stock on the last day of the immediately preceding fiscal year; or 

  
Plan Features  

  

•  the number of shares determined by our board of directors. 

Under the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan: 
  

  

•  We expect that options granted to optionees other than non-employee directors will generally vest as to 25% of the shares one 
year after the date of grant and as to 1/48 of the shares each month thereafter. 
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•  Nondiscretionary, automatic grants of nonstatutory stock options will be made to non-employee directors. A non-employee 
director will be granted automatically, unless such director waives his or her right to such grant, an initial option to purchase 
10,000 shares upon first becoming a member of our board of directors. The initial option vests and becomes exercisable at the 
time of grant. Immediately after each of our regularly scheduled annual meetings of stockholders, each non-employee director 
will be automatically granted a nonstatutory option to purchase 10,000 shares of our common stock, provided that the director 
has served on our board for at least six months. Each annual option will be fully vested and exercisable on the date which is six 
months after the date of grant. The options granted to non-employee directors will have a per share exercise price equal to 100% 
of the fair market value of the underlying shares on the date of grant, and will become fully vested if we are subject to a change 
on control. 
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•  Generally, if we merge or engage in a similar type of transaction with or into another corporation, we may accelerate the vesting 
or exercisability of outstanding options, restricted stock, stock appreciation rights or stock units which were granted under the 
plan or terminate through settlement of the full value in cash or cash equivalents of any unexercised options, restricted stock, 
stock appreciation rights or stock units which were granted under the plan unless they are assumed or substituted for by any 
surviving entity or a parent or subsidiary of the surviving entity. 

  
2.7.2.3.5. Limitation of Liability and Indemnification Matters  
  

•  The plan terminates ten years after its initial adoption by the board of directors, unless earlier terminated by the board of 
directors. The board of directors may amend or terminate the plan at any time, subject to stockholder approval where required by 
applicable law. Any amendment or termination may not impair the rights of holders of outstanding awards without their consent. 

Our restated certificate of incorporation limits the liability of our directors to the maximum extent permitted by Delaware law. 
Delaware law provides that directors of a corporation will not be personally liable for monetary damages for breach of their fiduciary 
duties as directors, except liability for:  
  

  
•  any breach of their duty of loyalty to the corporation or its stockholders; 

  
•  acts or omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law; 

  
•  unlawful payments of dividends or unlawful stock repurchases or redemptions; or 

  
This limitation of liability does not apply to liabilities arising under the federal securities laws and does not affect the availability of 
equitable remedies such as injunctive relief or rescission.  
  
Our restated certificate of incorporation and bylaws provide that we will indemnify our directors and executive officers and may 
indemnify our other officers and employees and other agents to the fullest extent permitted by law. Our restated certificate of 
incorporation and bylaws also permit us to secure insurance on behalf of any officer, director, employee or other agent for any 
liability arising out of his or her actions in such capacity, regardless of whether the bylaws would permit indemnification.  
  
We have entered into agreements to indemnify each of our directors and executive officers, in addition to the indemnification 
provided for in our restated certificate of incorporation and bylaws. In addition, we maintain directors’ and officers’ liability 
insurance. We believe that these provisions and agreements are necessary to attract and retain qualified persons as directors and 
executive officers.  
  
3. Operating Results and Financial Condition  
  

•  any transaction from which the director derived an improper personal benefit. 

3.1 Operating Results  
  

  

  

Operating Results 
  

Year ended 
December 31, 

2004 
  

Year ended 
December 31,

2003 
  

Change from 
previous year 

 

Revenues   490,282  —   490,282 
Operating Loss   (48,612,386) (6,261,103) (42,351,283)
Net Loss   (48,272,603) (6,209,130) (42,063,473)

3.1.1 Overview

Despite a sharp rise in oil prices, a burgeoning fiscal deficit, a weaker dollar and other destabilizing factors, the US 
economy continued to enjoy relatively stable growth. However, moderate economic  
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expansion generated only modest growth in the pharmaceutical industry’s major markets and, according to the market 
research firm IMS Health, the growth rate for the US pharmaceuticals market dropped below double digits in 2004 for the 
first time since 1995. Both the general public and regulatory authorities now demand more rigorous disclosure from the 
pharmaceutical industry on drug product safety, and the pharmaceutical industry will continue to face a difficult business 
environment.  

  
Given these circumstances, we actively addressed three business challenges this term. The first was continued expansion of 
our pipelines for promising product candidates. MN-221 (for the treatment of premature labor), MN-305 (for the treatment 
of generalized anxiety disorder), MN-166 (for the treatment of multiple sclerosis), and MN-246 (for the treatment of 
urinary incontinence) were newly added to the development portfolio during this term. The second challenge was further 
progress in our development programs via a dual pathway: strategic core programs and partnering programs. We submitted 
an application to begin clinical testing of the new drug MN-221 as well as an application to begin clinical testing and Phase 
1 clinical trials of the new anticancer drug MN-029 as part of our strategic core programs this term, while in partnering 
programs we submitted applications to begin clinical testing of the new MN-001 for bronchial asthma and to commence 
latter-stage Phase 2 clinical testing for MN-305. The third challenge tackled was enhancement of our management team. 
Our company management was bolstered this term by the addition of four operating officers and the appointment of three 
new independent directors.  

  
Revenues  

  
Our revenues totaled $0.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2004 from development management services 
performed under two master services agreements. We had no revenue during the same period in 2003.  

  
Research and Development  

  
Research and development expenses increased to $11.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2004 from $4.7 million 
for the year ended December 31, 2003. This increase primarily was due to:  

  

  
 

•  an increase of $3.6 million in our strategic core programs as a result of $1.1 million of clinical trial and related 
costs and $2.5 million of milestone, licensing and other costs; 

  
 

•  an increase of $2.7 million in our partnering programs as a result of $1.0 million of clinical trial and related costs 
and $1.7 million of licensing and other costs; 

  
 

•  a decrease of $0.9 million in our SOCC program as a result of $0.7 million of reduced pre-clinical development 
when we redirected our resources to our strategic core and partnering programs and $0.2 million of other costs; and 

  
General and Administrative  

  

 
•  an increase of $1.3 million in unallocated expenses as a result of increased salaries and related personnel costs due 

to increased research and development staff. 

General and administrative expenses increased to $3.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2004 from $1.5 million for 
the year ended December 31, 2003. This increase primarily was due to $0.9 million of salaries and related costs as we 
expanded our general and administrative functions to support our operations, $0.4 million of legal fees, other professional 
fees and consulting fees and expenses paid to the chairman of our board of directors and $0.4 million of other expenses.  

  
Stock-Based Compensation  

  
Stock-based compensation expenses totaled $34.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2004 due to the issuance of 
warrants at exercise prices below the estimated fair value of our common stock and the  
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amortization of deferred stock-based compensation. We had no issuances of options or warrants during the comparable 
period in 2003 that required us to record stock-based compensation expenses.  

  
Operating Loss and Net Loss  

  
Operating loss was $48.6 million and net loss was $48.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. Both operating 
loss and net loss increased by $42.4 million and $42.1 million, respectively, over the prior year for the reasons noted 
above.  

  
3. 2 Financial Conditions  
  
3.2.1 Assets, Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity  
  

Total assets increased to $53.8 million at December 31, 2004 from $5.6 million at December 31, 2003. Cash and cash 
equivalents and marketable securities available-for-sale increased by $45.3 million due to those factors noted in Section 3.2.2. 
Other assets increased by $2.2 million as a result of deferred offering costs related to the Company’s initial public offering. 
Accrued expenses increased to $1.6 million at December 31, 2004 from $0.3 million at December 31, 2003 primarily due to 
costs accrued related to the Company’s initial public offering. Redeemable convertible preferred stock increased by $43.5 
million as a result of the sale of Series C redeemable convertible preferred stock in September 2004. Stockholders’ equity 
increased to $7.7 million at December 31, 2004 from $4.6 million at December 31, 2003 as a result of the sale of $17.2 million 
of Series B preferred stock offset by the net loss for the year ended December 31, 2004 (excluding non-cash stock-based 
compensation).  

  
3.2.2 Cash Flows  
  

  
As of December 31, 2004, we had $50.8 million in cash and investments as compared to $5.5 million as of December 31, 2003, 
an increase of $45.3 million. This increase primarily resulted from completion of the sale of our Series B and Series C preferred 
stock. Net cash used in operating activities amounted to $13.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2004, primarily 
reflecting the net loss occurring for this period of $48.3 million, offset by non-cash charges for stock-based compensation of 
$34.3 million. Net cash used in investing activities for the year ended December 31, 2004 consisted of $0.3 million of capital 
equipment purchases exclusive of $10.8 million for the purchase of investments. Net cash provided by financing activities 
amounted to $59.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2004, primarily reflecting the sale of Series B and Series C 
preferred stock.  
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Year ended 
December 31,

2004 
  

Year ended 
December 31, 

2003 
  

Change from 
previous year 

 

Net cash used in operating activities   (13,546,476) (5,931,250) (7,615,226)
Net cash used in investing activities   (11,071,235) (1,065,716) (10,005,519)
Net cash provided by financing activities   59,178,340  9,956,547  49,221,793 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period   4,240,699  1,281,118  2,959,581
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period   38,801,328  4,240,699  34,560,629

   

Year Ended 
December 31,

2004 
 

Stockholders’ Equity Ratio  14.3%
Capital Adequacy Ratio on Market Price Basis   —   
Years for Amortization   —   
Interest Coverage Ratio   —   
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4. Forecast of Performance Results for Next Term (Fiscal Year ended December, 2005) 
  

  

  
We expect a 53% increase in revenue in the year ending December 31, 2005 over the $0.5 million in 2004 due to increased 
activity under our development management contracts. We also expect operating loss in 2005 will decrease by $7.7 million from 
$48.6 million in 2004. We anticipate a continued increase in research and development expenditures in 2005 over 2004 due to 
the expansion and progress of our portfolio of product candidates. This increase will be offset, however, by a decrease of stock-
based compensation expense because we will not incur further non-cash charges related to our founders’ warrants in 2005. We 
further expect that net losses in 2005 will decrease by $10.6 million from $48.3 million in 2004. In addition to the reasons for 
the decrease of operating loss in 2005 from 2004, we anticipate an increase in interest income in 2005 due to the increase of cash 
and cash equivalents and investments in 2005 from 2004.  
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Fiscal Year 
Ending 

December 31, 
2005 

(forecast) 
  

Incremental Change 
from Fiscal Year Ended 

December 31, 2004 
(actual) 

 

Revenue   750,000  259,718  53%
Operating Loss   (40,900,000) (7,712,386) (—%)
Net Loss    (37,700,000) (10,572,603) (—%)

 
Note: Our independent auditors have not compiled or been involved in the preparation of the forecasted results for 2005. 

Accordingly, they assume no responsibility for the accuracy or presentation of this information. All comparisons are 
made against year ended December 31, 2004 actual results. 
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5. Individual Financial Statements  
  
5.1 Balance Sheet  
  

Description 
  

Dec. 31, 2004

     

Dec. 31, 2003

     

Change from 
prior year 

 

      
Component

Ratio      
Component

Ratio     

Assets                    

Current Assets:                    

Cash and cash equivalents*   $ 38,801,328   $ 4,240,699    $ 34,560,629 
Marketable securities available-for-sale*    12,000,000      1,250,000      10,750,000 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets    487,576      108,360      379,216 

           

Total Current Assets    51,288,904  95.4%  5,599,059  99.4%  45,689,845 
Property and equipment, net*    308,187      32,250      275,937 

Other assets*    2,171,504      —        2,171,504 
           

Total Assets   $ 53,768,595  100.0% $ 5,631,309  100.0% $ 48,137,286 
           

Liabilities and stockholders’ equity                
Current Liabilities:                

Accounts payable   $ 469,798     $ 329,328     $ 140,470 
Accrued expenses    1,552,622      294,500      1,258,122 
Accrued payroll and related expenses    562,656      137,599      425,057 

           

Total Current Liabilities    2,585,076  4.8%  761,427  13.5%  1,823,649 
Deferred Rent    31,321      —        31,321 
Advances received for the sale of convertible 

preferred stock    —      300,000     (300,000)
Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock, $0.01 

par value*    43,483,076  80.9%  —        43,483,076 
Number of authorized shares:                    

27,667,856 shares as of December 31, 
2004                    

No shares as of December 31, 2003                    

Number of issued shares:                
27,667,856 shares as of December 31, 

2004                    

No shares as of December 31, 2003                    

Stockholders’ Equity                    

Convertible Preferred Stock, $0.01 par value    12,912      11,075      1,837 
Number of authorized shares:                    

1,291,150 shares as of December 31, 
2004                    

3,000,000 shares as of December 31, 
2003                    

Number of issued shares:                    

1,291,150 shares as of December 31, 
2004                    

1,107,500 shares as of December 31, 
2003                    

Common Stock, $0.001 par value    500      500      —   
Number of authorized shares:                    

83,000,000 shares as of December 31, 
2004                    

80,000,000 shares as of December 31, 
2003                

Number of issued shares:                    

500,000 shares as of December 31, 
2004                    
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500,000 shares as of December 31, 
2003                    

Additional paid-in capital    103,603,132      19,694,972      83,908,160 
Deferred Employee Stock-Based Compensation*    (1,194,721)     —        (1,194,721)
Deficit accumulated during the development stage   (94,752,701)     (15,136,665)     (79,616,036)
           

Total Stockholders’ Equity    7,669,122  14.3%  4,569,882  81.2%  3,099,240 
       

Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity   $ 53,768,595  100.0% $ 5,631,309  100.0% $ 48,137,286 
           

* Please see Notes to Financial Statements below. 



 ˆ1GSRC0397TDB09G3Š
1GSRC0397TDB09G

54502 EX99_1 25MEDICINOVA, INC.
FORM 8-K

21-Mar-2005 14:57 EST
HTMSDI

RR Donnelley ProFile TOR dennr0nb 13*
PMT 1C

NPBFBU-2K-PF005
8.8.12

Page 1 of 1

5.2 Profit and Loss Statement  
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Description 
  

Year Ended 
Dec. 31, 

2004 
     

Year Ended 
Dec. 31, 

2003 
     

Change from 
prior year 

 
      %      %    

Revenues   $ 490,282  100.0  $ —       $ 490,282 
Operating Expenses                    

Cost of revenues    437,582  89.3   —       437,582 
Research and development*    11,210,285  2,286.5   4,723,158     6,487,127 
General and administrative   3,160,306  644.6   1,537,945    1,622,361 
Amortization of employee stock-based compensation and 

founders’ warrants:*                    

Research and development    106,770      —       106,770 
General and administrative    34,187,725      —       34,187,725 

           

Total Operating Expenses    49,102,668  10,015.2   6,261,103     42,841,565 
           

Operating Loss    (48,612,386)     (6,261,103)    (42,351,283)
Other Income, net    339,783      51,973     287,810 
           

Net Loss    (48,272,603)     (6,209,130)    (42,063,473)
Accretion to redemption value of redeemable convertible preferred 

stock    (78,756)     —        (78,756)
Deemed dividend resulting from beneficial conversion feature on 

Series C redeemable convertible preferred stock    (31,264,677)     —       (31,264,677)
           

Net loss applicable to common stockholders   $ (79,616,036)    $ (6,209,130)    $ (73,406,906)
           

Basic and diluted net loss per share   $ (159.23)    $ (12.42)       

              

Shares used to compute basic and diluted net loss per share   500,000     500,000     

              

Pro forma net loss per common share assuming conversion of 
preferred stock, basic and diluted (unaudited)   $ (1.85)              

                 

Shares used in computing pro forma net loss per common share 
assuming conversion of preferred stock, basic and diluted 
(unaudited)   42,943,281           

                 

* Please see Notes to Financial Statements below. 
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5.3 Deficit Accumulated During the Development Stage  
  

  
5.4 Cash Flow Statement  
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Year Ended Dec. 31,
2004 

  

Year Ended Dec. 31,
2003 

 

Beginning Deficit Accumulated During the 
Development Stage   $ (15,136,665) $ (8,927,535)

Net loss    (48,272,603)  (6,209,130)
Deemed dividend resulting from beneficial 

conversion feature on Series C redeemable 
convertible preferred stock    (31,264,677)  —   

Accretion to redemption value of redeemable 
convertible preferred stock    (78,756)  —   

    

Ending Deficit Accumulated During the 
Development Stage   $ (94,752,701) $ (15,136,665)

    

Description 
  

Year ended 
December 31,

2004 
  

Year ended 
December 31, 

2003 
  

Decrease 
(Increase) 

 

Operating activities:              

Net loss    $(48,272,603) $(6,209,130) $(42,063,473)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:           

Non-cash stock-based compensation  34,294,495   —     34,294,495 
Depreciation and amortization    45,298   29,872   15,426 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:              

Prepaid expenses and other assets   (379,216)  (49,394)  (329,822)
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and deferred rent   340,493   444,412   (103,919)
Due to affiliate   —     (265,466)  265,466 
Accrued compensation and related expenses   425,057   118,456   306,601 

     

Cash flows from operating activities  (13,546,476)  (5,931,250)  (7,615,226)
Purchases of marketable securities available-for-sale    (10,750,000)  (1,250,000)  (9,500,000)
Acquisitions of property and equipment   (321,235)  (10,537)  (310,698)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment   —     194,821   (194,821)

     

Net cash used in investing activities   (11,071,235)  (1,065,716)  (10,005,519)
Payment of IPO issuance costs   (1,082,084)  —     (1,082,084)
Sales of preferred stock, net of issuance costs   60,560,424   9,656,547   50,903,877 
Advances received for the sale of convertible preferred stock   (300,000)  300,000   (600,000)

     

Net cash provided by financing activities   59,178,340   9,956,547   49,221,793 
     

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents   34,560,629   2,959,581   31,601,048 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period  4,240,699   1,281,118   2,959,581 
    
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period   $ 38,801,328  $ 4,240,699  $ 34,560,629 
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5.5 Important Basic Matters for Compiling Financial Statements 
  
5.5.1 Main Accounting Policy  
  
  
5.5.1.1 Valuation of Securities 

Investments with an original maturity of more than three months are considered short-term investments and have been 
classified by management as marketable securities available-for-sale. Such investments consist mainly of municipal 
auction rate securities and are carried at fair value with unrealized gains and losses, if any, included as a separate 
component of stockholders’ equity.  

  

  
5.5.1.2 Depreciation Method of Important Tangible Fixed Assets 

The Company’s important tangible fixed assets, which consist of annexed structures of buildings and fixtures, are stated 
at cost and depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets. The useful life 
for fixtures is five years, and annexed structures of buildings are amortized over the lesser of the useful life or the term 
of the lease. The Company’s current lease will expire in 2008.  

  

  

  

5.5.1.3 Disposition Method of Deferred Assets

5.5.1.3.1 Corporate Income Tax 

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes, a 
deferred tax asset or liability is determined based on the difference between the financial statement and the tax basis of 
assets and liabilities as measured by the enacted tax rates, which will be in effect when these differences reverse. The 
Company provides a valuation allowance against net deferred tax assets unless, based upon the available evidence, it is 
more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will be realized after offsetting.  

  

  
5.5.1.3.2 Expenses for Issuance of New Stock

Costs associated with the initial public offering will be accounted for as a reduction to the gross proceeds of the offering 
in the statement of stockholders’ equity at the completion of the offering. Prior to completion of the offering, costs 
associated therewith are capitalized as other assets.  

  

  
5.5.1.4 Computation Standard for Assets and Liabilities in Foreign Currencies into Home Currency 

Assets and liabilities of foreign operations where the functional currency is other than the U.S. dollar are translated at 
fiscal year-end rates of exchange, and the related revenue and expense amounts are translated at the average rates of 
exchange during the fiscal year.  

  

  
5.5.1.5 Disposition Method of Lease Transaction

The Company leases its facilities under operating leases. The minimum annual rent on the Company’s facilities is 
subject to increases based on stated rental adjustment terms of certain leases, taxes, insurance and operating costs. For 
financial reporting purposes, rent expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the leases. Accordingly, 
rent expense recognized in excess of rent paid is reflected as deferred rent.  

  

  
5.5.1.6 Recording Standard of Reserves 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S. requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts  
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of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and 
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates.  

  

  
5.5.1.7 Recording Standard of Revenue and Expenses 

  
5.5.1.7.1 Revenue Recognition 

In connection with the management of clinical trials, the Company pays, on behalf of its customers, fees to responsible 
doctors for clinical trials and other pass-through costs for which it is reimbursed at cost, without mark-up or profit. In 
addition, the Company charges management fees based on negotiated hourly rates pursuant to master services 
agreements with Asahi Kasei Pharma Corporation and Argenes Inc. The Company recognizes management fees based 
on actual hours worked and recognizes pass-through expenses as revenue when the related liability is incurred in 
accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Rule No. 01-14, Income Statement Characterization of 
Reimbursements Received for “Out-of-Pocket” Expenses Incurred. EITF No. 01-14 requires reimbursable pass-through 
expenses incurred to be characterized as revenue in the profit and loss statement. Pass-through costs represent the 
majority of cost of revenues during the year ended December 31, 2004.  

  

  
5.5.1.7.2 Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses consist of costs incurred to further the Company’s research and development 
activities and include salaries and related employee benefits, costs associated with clinical trials and non-clinical 
activities such as toxicology testing and pharmaceutical activities and research-related overhead expenses. They also 
include fees for external service providers to conduct particular research and development activities and contract 
research organizations to conduct clinical trials on behalf of the Company. Research and development expenses also 
include fees for licensed technology for which technological feasibility has not been established and there are no 
alternative uses. Research and development costs are expensed as incurred.  

  

  
5.5.1.7.3 Stock-Based Compensation

The Company has elected to follow Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued 
to Employees, and related interpretations in accounting for its employee stock options and warrants as permitted by 
SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation. Under APB Opinion No. 25, if the exercise price of the 
Company’s employee stock options or warrants is not less than the fair value of the underlying stock on the date of 
grant, no compensation expense is recognized. In determining the fair value of the common stock, the Board of 
Directors considered, among other factors, (i) the advancement of the Company’s technology, (ii) the Company’s 
financial position and (iii) the fair value of the Company’s common stock or preferred stock as determined in arm’s-
length transactions.  

  

  
5.5.1.7.4 Comprehensive Income 

The Company has adopted SFAS No. 130, Reporting Comprehensive Income, which requires that all components of 
comprehensive income, including net income, be reported in the financial statements in the period in which they are 
recognized. Comprehensive income is defined as the change in equity during a period from transactions and other events 
and circumstances from non-owner sources. Net income and other comprehensive income, including foreign currency 
translation adjustments and unrealized gains and losses on investments, shall be reported, net of their related tax effect, 
to arrive at comprehensive income.  
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5.5.1.8 Cash and Cash Equivalents as used in the Statement of Cash Flows 

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and other highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or 
less from the date of purchase.  

  

  
5.5.1.9 Impairment of Fixed Assets

The Company reviews long-lived assets, including fixed assets, for impairment whenever events or changes in business 
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be fully recoverable. An impairment loss would be 
recognized when estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset and its eventual 
disposition are less than its carrying amount. The impairment loss, if recognized, would be based on the excess of the 
carrying value of the impaired asset over its respective fair value. Impairment, if any, is assessed using discounted cash 
flows.  

  

  
5.5.1.10 Differences in Accounting Principles and Practice between the United States of America and Japan

The Company has prepared the financials included in this document in accordance with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in the U.S. (U.S. Accounting Principles). Therefore, these financials are different in accounting 
principles from those compiled in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in Japan (Japanese 
Accounting Principles). The main differences between the U.S. Accounting Principles and the Japanese Accounting 
Principles are as follows:  

  

  
5.5.1.10.1 Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Those to be Disposed 

According to the U.S. Accounting Principles, when any events indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be 
recoverable for retained and utilized long-lived assets and specific recognizable intangible assets, the Company must 
study whether the impairment of values occurs or not. If any indication of impairment is recognized, the Company has 
to decide whether the total amount of the estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to result from the subject 
asset is less than its carrying amount. If yes, the Company recognizes the amount with which the carrying amount 
exceeds the fair value as an impairment loss. And all assets with impairment losses of values among the assets to be 
disposed are requested to be recorded at the lesser of carrying amounts or net realizable values. Under the Japanese 
Accounting Principles, the impairment accounting will be applied to fixed assets as from a business year commencing 
on or after April 1, 2005. They also include the provision for earlier application.  

  

  
5.5.1.10.2 Accounting for Paid Vacation

The Japanese Accounting Standards do not refer to the accounting of paid vacation, and related liabilities are not 
recognized under the accounting principles in Japan.  

  
Under the U.S. Accounting Standards, if certain conditions are satisfied, liabilities are required to be recognized for the 
rights of employees for benefits of future paid vacations.  

  

  
5.5.1.9.5 Capitalization of Interest Charge 

Under the Japanese Accounting Standards, except certain special categories of business, interest charges are not 
capitalized but recorded as gains or losses for the period of accrual. Under the U.S. Accounting Standards, interest 
charges accrued during constructions of qualified assets are required to be capitalized as parts of acquisition costs.  
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5.5.1.9.7 Accounting of Stock-Based Compensation 

In the Japanese Accounting Standards, there is no comprehensive accounting standard with regard to stock-based 
compensation. In general, when a stock option is granted, it is recorded at its issuance price, and when it is granted free 
of charge, liabilities and expenses are not recognized.  

  
Under the U.S. Accounting Standards, the following two options are allowed for accounting of stock-based 
compensation.  

  
Intrinsic Value Method: Compensation measured as a part with which a market trading price as of the date when a right 
is granted or another measurement date exceeds an exercise price is recognized over the period of providing services.  

  
Fair Value Method: Compensation measured on the basis of a reward value as of the date when a right is granted is 
recognized over the period of providing services.  
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5.6 Notes to Profit and Loss Statement 

   

Year ended 
December 31, 

2004 
  

Year ended 
December 31,

2003 

Total Research & Development Expense   $11,210,285  $4,723,158
     

Earnings per share information:         

Basis for computation of diluted loss per share for the year ended 
December 31, 2004 (pro forma):         

Shares of Common Stock outstanding    500,000    

Pro forma adjustments to reflect assumed weighted average 
effect of conversion of preferred stock (unaudited)    42,443,281    

       

Pro forma shares used to compute basic and diluted net loss 
per share (unaudited)   42,943,281    

       

Basis for computation of weighted average shares for forecasted 
loss per share for fiscal year ending December 31, 2005:         

Shares of Common Stock outstanding at December 31, 2004    500,000    

Shares of Preferred Stock converted into Common Stock 
upon initial public offering   66,782,856    

New Common Stock issued in initial public offering   27,123,288    
New Common Stock issued for over-allotment    1,284,257    

       

Total number of Shares used for earnings per share    95,690,401    
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Acquisition Cost 
  

Fair Value

  

Unrealized Gain & 
Loss 

   

2004 
  

2003

  

2004

  

2003 
  

2004 
  

2003

Securities:                       

Municipal Auction Rate Securities   $10,750,000  $1,250,000  $10,750,000  $1,250,000  —    —  

   

2004 
        

2003 
      

Property and equipment consist of the following:                       

Leasehold improvements   $ 35,414          $ —        

Furniture and equipment    321,136           39,852      

Software    11,299        7,038      

                 
    367,849        46,890      

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization    (59,662)          (14,640)     

              
   $ 308,187          $ 32,250      

                 

Related-Party Transactions

 

Our board of directors approved an arrangement 
in September 2001 to engage Dr. Yuichi Iwaki, 
Director and Chairman, as a consultant to us. 
Under the terms of his agreement, Dr. Iwaki 
provides us with services in connection with the 
Company’s financing and business development 
activities. Dr. Iwaki presently is paid $20,000 per 
month plus other cash or stock compensation, if 
any, as the board of directors deems appropriate 
for his services. During the year ended December 
31, 2004, Dr. Iwaki earned $360,000 pursuant to 
this arrangement.

  

Our board of directors approved an 
arrangement in September 2001 to engage Dr. 
Yuichi Iwaki, Director and Chairman, as a 
consultant to us. Under the terms of his 
agreement, Dr. Iwaki provides us with 
services in connection with the Company’s 
financing and business development activities. 
Dr. Iwaki presently is paid $20,000 per month 
plus other cash or stock compensation, if any, 
as the board of directors deems appropriate for 
his services. During the year ended December 
31, 2003, Dr. Iwaki earned $190,000 pursuant 
to this arrangement.
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2004 
  

2003

 

Tax Effect Accounting         
Deferred tax assets:          

Net operating loss carryforwards   $      8,647,000  $     4,347,000 
Capitalized licenses   1,821,000   501,000 
Research tax credits   327,000   —   
Other, net   14,000   28,000 

    

Net deferred tax assets   10,809,000   4,876,000 
Less valuation allowance   (10,809,000)  (4,876,000)

    
   $                —    $             —   
    

Retirement Benefit    Not applicable.   Not applicable. 

Premise of Going Concern   Not applicable.   Not applicable. 
Stock-Based Compensation:          

Stock-Based Compensation for Warrant          

At issue of Series B Preferred Stock   $ 19,405,950  $             —   
At issue of Series C Preferred Stock   14,663,966   —   

    
   $ 34,069,916  $             —   
    
Deferred employee Stock-Based compensation   $   1,419,300  $             —   

Amortization of employee stock-based compensation   (224,579)  —   
    

Unamortized deferred employee stock-based 
compensation   $  1,194,721  $             —   

    



 ˆ1GSRC0397TSQRMGXŠ
1GSRC0397TSQRMG

54502 EX99_1 33MEDICINOVA, INC.
FORM 8-K

21-Mar-2005 15:01 EST
HTMSDI

RR Donnelley ProFile TOR scotr0nb 14*
PMT 1C

NPBFBU-2K-PF007
8.8.12

Page 1 of 1

  
33 

   

2004 
  

2003

Stock Options:    
Persons Granted    Employees and Non-Employees     

Number of Shares authorized to be issued   2,000,000   2,000,000
Number of options outstanding   1,550,000   390,000
Number of Exercised Shares   0   0
Exercise price   $ 1.00   $ 1.00
Weighted average remaining contractual life of 

options  8.9 years  8.1 years

Common Stock Reserved for Future Issuance:         

Convertible Preferred Stock (as-converted)   66,782,856   20,750,000
Common Stock Warrant   13,356,572   3,650,000
Common Stock Options outstanding   1,550,000   390,000
Common Stock Options Authorized for Future 

Grant   450,000   1,610,000

Warrant    
Persons Granted    Founder    Founder
Exercise price   $ 0.10   $ 0.10
Number of Shares   12,856,572   3,650,000
Exercisable Period   Expire on September 26, 2007   Expire on September 26, 2007
Paid Amount 

  

  $ 1,285,657 aggregate exercise 
price.   

 $365,000 aggregate exercise 
price.

Exercising Condition  None.  None.

Persons Granted  BioVen Advisory   
Exercise price    $ 1.00     

Number of Shares   500,000     

Exercisable Period   Expires May 24, 2009.     

Paid Amount 
  

  $ 500,000 aggregate exercise 
price.     

Exercising Condition  None.   
  

Each warrant contains provisions for the adjustment of its exercise price and the number of shares issuable upon its exercise 
upon the occurrence of any stock dividend or stock split. The warrants have net exercise provisions under which the holder may, in 
lieu of payment of the exercise price in cash, surrender the warrant and receive a net amount of shares based on the fair market value 
of the common stock at the time of exercise of the warrants after deduction of the aggregate exercise price. 
  

  

Year End Dec. 31, 2004

 

Year End Dec. 31, 2003 

Convertible Preferred Stock   

Series A 
  

Series B 
  

Series A 
  

Series B

Number of Authorized Shares   1,000,000  291,150  1,000,000  500,000
Number of Issued Shares  1,000,000  291,150  1,000,000  107,500
Carrying Value   $ 10,000,000  $ 26,812,651  $ 10,000,000  $ 9,656,547
Aggregate Liquidation Preference   $ 10,000,000  $ 29,115,000  $ 10,000,000  $ 10,750,000
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Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock

  

On September 2, 2004, the Company sold 
27,667,856 shares of Series C redeemable 
convertible preferred stock at a purchase 
price of $1.62 per share for total net 
proceeds of $43,404,320, net of 
$1,417,607 of estimated issuance costs. 
The Series C preferred stock was sold at a 
price per share below our initial public 
offering price. Accordingly, pursuant to 
EITF Issue No. 98-5, Accounting for 
Convertible Securities with Beneficial 
Conversion Features, the Company 
recorded a deemed dividend on the Series 
C preferred stock of $31,264,677, which is 
equal to the number of shares of Series C 
preferred stock sold multiplied by the 
difference between the estimated fair 
value of the underlying common stock and 
the Series C preferred stock conversion 
price per share. The deemed dividend 
increased the net loss applicable to 
common stockholders in the calculation of 
basic and diluted net loss per common 
share and was reported as a charge to 
accumulated deficit and a credit to 
additional paid-in capital, with no net 
impact on total stockholders’ equity.   

 

Redeemable convertible preferred stock

  

The redemption provisions of the Series C 
preferred stock stipulate that at any time 
beginning in August 2010, upon request of 
holders of at least a majority of the then 
outstanding Series C preferred stock, the 
Company is required to redeem the Series 
C preferred stock of each requesting 
holder. The redemption shall take place in 
three equal annual installments with the 
initial redemption no later than 60 days 
after redemption is requested. The 
redemption price is equal to $1.62 plus 
any declared and unpaid dividends at the 
date of the redemption request and is 
limited to funds legally available. The 
Company is accreting the difference 
between the carrying value and   
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Changes in Capitalization  
  
We completed our initial public offering on February 4, 2005. In addition to the issuance of 30,000,000 shares of our common stock, 
we had the following changes in capitalization:  
  

  
On March 8, 2005, the underwriters also exercised their overallotment option and we issued an additional 1,573,000 shares of our 
common stock at $3.53 per share.  
  
The following sets forth the changes to our balance sheet as if the initial public offering had been completed as of December 31, 
2004.  
  
The pro forma information gives effect to (1) the filing of a restated certificate of incorporation to provide for authorized capital stock 
of 200,000,000 shares of common stock and 5,000,000 shares of undesignated preferred stock, (2) the sale by us of 30,000,000 shares 
of common stock at an initial public offering price of $3.88 per share and the receipt of estimated net proceeds of $104,299,964, after 
deducting estimated underwriting discounts and commissions and estimated offering costs payable by us, (3) the sale by us of 
1,573,000 shares of common stock at an initial public offering price of $3.53 per share and the receipt of estimated net proceeds of 
$5,557,773, after deducting estimated underwriters discounts and commissions and estimated offering costs payable by us, and (4) the 
conversion of all of our outstanding shares of preferred stock into 66,782,856 shares of common stock upon the closing of our initial 
public offering.  
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redemption value of the Series C preferred 
stock over the period up to the first 
redemption date of August 2010.   

 

Important Subsequent Event       

 
•  filed a restated certificate of incorporation to provide for authorized capital stock of 200,000,000 shares of common stock 

and 5,000,000 shares of undesignated preferred stock; and 

 
•  reserved 20,300,000 shares of common stock for the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan and our 2000 General Stock Incentive Plan 

was terminated. The 450,000 shares available for future grant under this plan were also cancelled. 

   

December 31, 2004 
 

   

Actual
  

Pro Forma
 

Cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities available-for-sale   $ 50,801,328  $160,660,065 
    

Redeemable convertible preferred stock, $0.01 par value; actual—27,667,856 shares authorized, 
issued and outstanding; pro forma—no shares authorized, issued and outstanding   $ 43,483,076  $ —   

Stockholders’ equity:          

Convertible preferred stock, $0.01 par value; actual—1,291,150 shares authorized, issued and 
outstanding; pro forma—5,000,000 shares authorized; no shares issued and outstanding    12,912   —   

Common stock, $0.001 par value; actual—83,000,000 shares authorized; 500,000 shares issued 
and outstanding; pro forma—200,000,000 shares authorized; 98,855,856 shares issued and 
outstanding    500   98,856 

Additional paid-in capital    103,603,132   256,858,501 
Deferred employee stock-based compensation    (1,194,721)  (1,194,721)
Deficit accumulated during the development stage    (94,752,701)  (94,752,701)
    

Total stockholders’ equity   $    7,669,122  $161,009,935 
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6. Situations of Production, Order Receiving and Sale  
  

The Company engages mainly in research and development and not in production and order receiving. 
  

Revenues recorded with the Company’s main trade partners during 2004 and the ratio against such sales are as follows:  
  

  
7. Change of Directors  
  

Trade Partner

  

Year ended 
December 31,

2004 
 

Ratio

  

Year ended 
December 31,

2003 
  

Ratio

Asahi Kasei Pharma Corp.   455,195  92.8% —    —  

Not applicable.  
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